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MHSA/Finance Committee Meeting 
Thursday October 19, 2017  1:00-3:00 pm 

2425 Bisso Lane, Concord 

Second floor conference room 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

I. Call to order/Introductions 

 

II. Public Comment 

 

III. Commissioner Comments 

 

IV. Chair Announcements  

 

V. APPROVE Minutes from September 21, 2017 meeting  

 

VI. DISCUSS the network providers and services – with Katy White MFT, Care 

Management Unit and ACCESS Line Program Manager 

 

VII. DISCUSS and identify budget questions for meeting with Chief Financial Officer on 

November 16.  

 

VIII. DISCUSS Committee accomplishments in 2017 

 

IX. DISCUSS Committee goals for 2018 

 

X. DISCUSS Program Reviews, attached for : C.O.P.E and Lincoln  

 

XI. Adjourn 

The Mission Statement of the MHSA/Finance Committee:  In accordance with our mandated duties of Welfare & Institutions Code 5604, and aligned with 
the Mental Health Commission’s MHSA Guiding Principles, and the intent and purpose of the law, the MHSA/Finance Committee will work in partnership 

with all stakeholders, all community-based organizations and County providers to review and assess system integration and transformation in a 
transparent and accountable manner 
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MHSA-FINANCE Committee  
MONTHLY MEETING MINUTES  

September 21, 2017 – First Draft 
 

Agenda Item / Discussion Action / 
Follow-Up 

I. Call to Order / Introductions 
Vice Chair, Doug Dunn, called the meeting to order at 1:09 pm.  
 
Commissioners Present: 
Chair- Lauren Rettagliata, District II  

                Vice-Chair-Douglas Dunn, District III  
                Sam Yoshioka, District IV 

Duane Chapman, District I  
Diana MaKieve, District II (arrived @1:30pm) 

 
Commissioners Absent:  none 
 

Other Attendees: 
Margaret Netherby, NAMI representative (arrived @1:16pm) 
Erika Raulston, family member (*submitted application for MHC to COB) 
Leslie May, family member (*submitted application for MHC to COB) 
Teresa Pasquini, family member 
Adam Down,  Manager for BHS Admin 
Jill Ray, Field Representative, District II 
Liza A. Molina-Huntley, Executive Assistant 

Executive Assistant: 

 Transfer recording 
to computer. 

 Update Committee 
attendance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

II. Public comments:  

 Two public members are interested in becoming Commissioners for 
Contra Costa County. Both members were Mental Health Commissioners 
for Alameda County and have experience working in the mental health 
field and acknowledge the current crisis in behavioral and mental health, 
which affects all ages.  

 

III. Commissioners comments:  

 A request was made to clarify who will be responsible for explaining the 
financial documents included in the meeting packet; along with the 
County’s budget.  

 Training needed and requested, from the County’s Financial Officer (CFO), 
regarding the overall budget for the Behavioral and Mental Health 
Divisions. 

 It is important to gain better knowledge of the budget and prepare 
questions, collectively as a Committee, for the CFO 

 The “Graham-Cassidy” bill is a proposed legislation that states that 
behavioral health or mental health treatment is not considered an 
entitlement, unlike other forms of medical care and if passed, may have a 
negative impact in care in California’s mental health budget.  Attendees 
should contact their government officials to vote against the bill.  

 

IV. Chair announcements/comments: 

  NAMI will host a general meeting on 9/21/17 from 7-9pm; presenter Dr. 
Steven Seager, a Psychiatrist at Napa State hospital, will discuss his book 
and upcoming film “Shattered Families” and the second film, “Road 
Map”.  

 NAMI – on Thursday October 19, NAMI will hold a “Special General 
Meeting” to show Dr. Seager’s film “Road Map,” at 7pm, John Muir 
Concord 2500 East Street 
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 NAMI in Motion Walk will be on Saturday October 7, from 9am to noon, 
starting at Pleasant Hill Park 147 Gregory Lane in Pleasant Hill. Everyone is 
welcome.  

V. Approve minutes from August 17, 2017 meeting 
MOTION to approve minutes made by Sam , seconded by Duane 
Corrections to minutes noted and corrected 
VOTE: 4-0-0  
YAYS: Lauren, Duane, Doug and Diana 
NAYS: none  ABSTAIN: none   ABSENT: none 

*Executive Assistant  
Correct minutes and 
post finalized 
minutes.  

 

VI. REVIEW 2017 Committee goals and DISCUSS the areas of focus in order to 
obtain the desired goals 

  Goals need to be more specific and clear 

 Language of goals needs to be revised to be more comprehensive 

 Goals for 2017 will be sent to Executive Assistant and attached to the 
October meeting packet 

 Forward agenda item for the October meeting on 10/19/17, from 1-3pm 

* Chair will send 2017 
goals to EA to attach 
to the October 
meeting packet 
 

VII. REVIEW updated contract list provided by Adam Down 

 Handout provided, of most recent contract list, will be included in 
meeting packet for October. The contract list is divided by: adults, 
children’s, Board and Care,  Emergency Board and Care, MHSA Prevention 
and Early Intervention (PEI), Full Service Partnerships, Targeted Programs, 
contract doctor’s and business services and trainings, (done for workforce 
development or consultants). Contract list can be provided on an annual 
basis, since they are renewed annually. Psychiatric facilities for acute care 
are included in the contract list.  The “Revision” column refers to the 
order of the contract itself, for referencing purposes 

 Noted that there are discrepancies in the amount of contracts, 
comparison to the division’s budget  

 Some of the contracted amounts may not be relevant to the projected 
budget due to the timing of the release of information. The contract may 
have up to a certain amount on the budget, may not be fully paid at the 
time the contract list was gathered. It is not a document that is 
concurrent in time with the budget document, used for completely 
separate purposes.  The stated amounts of the contract are payment 
limits.  

 Move to the October 19 meeting to be discussed further by a staff 
representative in the Contract department or a representative from the 
Finance Office.  

 Request an explanation be given, along with the contract list, to clarify its 
purpose 

 Clarification of the number of beds being utilized at each location, if 
possible.  Noted that all beds are being utilized, at most times.  

 Network providers have not been included in the list. Another 
representative will be able to discuss the other areas- Katie White 
representative from Mental Health Services 

*see attachment and 
explanation for 
contract list 
 
*EA will contact Katie 
White to assist in 
providing information 
regarding the 
Network Providers 

VIII. DISCUSS regarding the Contra Costa County Budget for Mental Health. Identify 
areas of interest and prepare questions for future discussion with Contra Costa 
County’s Finance Department representative.   

 To view or obtain a copy of the fiscal budget copy and paste the link: 
http://www.cccounty.us/DocumentCenter/View/45595 or to view or 
print a copy of the 2017-2018 Recommended budget, copy and paste 
the link: http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/45407 

*Vice Chair will 
provide budget 
documentation for 4C 
 
*Chair will forward 
the timetable and list 
of documents, used in 

http://www.cccounty.us/DocumentCenter/View/45595
http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/45407


 

MHSA-FINANCE COMMITTEE 9/21/17- meeting minutes  Page 3 of 4 

 Duplication of documents in packet were due to information requested 
and sent for packet 

 Purpose for going through the documentation, in the links provided 
above and provided in the packet,  is to identify the intelligent questions 
to ask the County Finance Office representatives when the attend the 
Committee meeting in November, December at the very latest.  

 Although the information is not current, it serves as useful background 
information to prepare the budget foundation and determine how can 
the Mental Health Commission can advise in preparing budgets going 
forward, for the Behavioral Health Services department 

 The summary for 2013-2014, referring to several programs: Napa State 
hospital, managed care inpatient costs (a question to be raised with the 
County’s Finance Office) the amount stated, is not the actual costs for 4C, 
(4C has a budget of approximately $10 million).  The documentation 
referencing the 4C budget will be brought to the October 19 meeting.  
Regarding the 4C budget, there is uncertainty where the funding streams 
are from.  

 Attendants would like more current budget data. The data provided was 
for 2013-2014.  Several requests were made, since 2013-2014, to the 
County’s Financial Office, to provide current budget data. Another 
request will be sent to obtain current budget documents for 2016 and to 
request that a representative from the CFO to be present at the meeting , 
on November 16, to review and discuss the current budget data 

 Request that the County Financial Office provide the entire and current 
budget, for the Behavioral and Mental Health, and a representative to 
review and discuss the document.  

 Some of the financial documents are available on line 

 Upon receiving all the updated budget documentation and explanations, 
the MHSA/Finance Committee will forward and update the full 
Commission at the Mental Health Commission’s December meeting 

 Previous procedures and protocols, set in prior years to obtain financial 
documentation, were created.  Lists of documents were created, by the 
MHSA/Finance Committee that was deemed pertinent to review and 
discussion; along with a calendar that gave timetables for the Commission 
to follow. The previous structure allowed the Committee to obtain 
documents in a timely manner and helped the members set annual goals.  

 There is a need for continuity of current data and will inquire with CFO 
regarding establishing a timetable to receive current documents on an 
ongoing basis and set meetings with CFO to review and discuss on an 
quarterly or semi-annual basis, in accordance with budget timelines.  

 The MHSA/Finance Committee will update the full Commission, in order 
not to create duplication of efforts by staff and the Commission members 

 Documentation attached, for the meeting, was solely provided to be 
utilized as supportive and not actual, since current documentation has 
not been provided to the committee  

 The Committee does not want “projected” costs or income. What is being 
requested is a finalized report that includes all the funding sources, which 
has been approved by the Board of Supervisors 

 There needs to be a transparent process to inform the public of what is 
being spent where and explained to the Committee/Commission, so that 
it is efficient, without duplication and comprehensive.  

 In the recommended budget for 2017-2018, (available online at the link 

prior years, to EA  
 
*Request current 
budget data from CFO 
for 2015-2016, 
including Annual 
Reports, to be 
included in the next 
meeting’s  packet for 
October 19 for review 
and discussion in the 
Committee to identify 
questions for the CFO 
representative 
meeting on November 
16 
 
*Request 
presentation from 
Whole Person 
Care/Community 
Connect for the MHC’s 
November or 
December meeting 
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stated) there are further details for the Committee to review and discuss 
at the next month’s meeting (see pages 264, 273, 277) to view options in 
regards to what areas require the focus of the Committee 

 It is hoped that the Finance Office will be collaborative with the requests 
being made on a scheduled, ongoing basis, that is acceptable to both 
parties 

 Whole Person Care helps connect people and coordinate services. A 
presentation to the full commission would be beneficial 

MOTION TO REQUEST to the County’s Finance Office, the MOST RECENT 
COMPLETED FISCAL FINANCIAL ACTUAL BUDGET DATA INFORMATION, for 2015 
and 2016, including the Annual Cost Reports (that is provided to the State),  for 
Contra Costa Behavioral and Mental Health Divisions, (including locked facilities 
and detention) including the main funding sources to be included in the 
documents; to be received before THE NEXT MHSA/FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING on October 19, 2017 

Motion made by Lauren Rettagliata, seconded by Sam Yoshioka 
Vote: 5-0-0 
YAYS: Lauren, Doug, Duane, Sam and Diana 
NAYS: none ABSTAIN: none ABSENT: none 

IX. DISCUSS and identify possible areas for improvement for 2018-2019 

 Areas for improvement, for the MHSA/Finance Committee, in collaboration with 
Behavioral Health Services 

 Set specific goals, three to five 

 Each Committee member write down at least three goals to accomplish in 2018, 
to be submitted at the October meeting 

 Goals should be a committee project, not rely solely on the Chair and Vice Chair 
to complete  

 Look for new membership participation 

 The purpose is to look at where the money is being spent and how it’s being 
spent and how it benefits the services for the County’s mental/behavioral health 
consumers.  The millions of dollars being spent should be making a difference 
and it is not and the Committee/Commission needs to find the gaps and the 
reasons why the expenditures are not making the impact on the Community that 
it should be making.  It is the Committee’s responsibility to point out and advise 
the Board  

MOTION to request three goals, from each Committee member, to be 
submitted at the next meeting in October 
Laure made the motion, Sam seconded the motion 
VOTE: 5-0-0 
YAYS: Duane, Doug, Lauren, Diana, Sam 
NAYS: none ABSTAIN: none ABSENT: none 

*Each Committee 
member will submit 
three goals for the 
MHSA/Finance 
Committee in 2018 

X.  Adjourned at 2:47pm  
  

 

 
 Minutes provided by: 

Liza Molina-Huntley  
Executive Assistant to the Mental Health Commission 
CCHS-Behavioral Health Administration 





























































MHSA/FINANCE 2017-2018 ACTION 
PLAN- by Lauren Rettagliata 

MHSA/Finance 2017 Action Plan 

Goal – Effectively tracking funding spent on Mental Health—is funding being leveraged to recoup 

maximum dollars from federal and state funding? 

Task 1 

 Receiving and Reviewing MHSA Program and Fiscal review 

o Success Criteria—improve outcomes for consumers by identifying areas for 

improvement. 

 Time Frame—ongoing 

 Resources-- MHSA Administrative Chief and Staff   

Task 2 

 Receiving Quarterly MHSA Budget Reports 

o Success Criteria—able to identify weaknesses in planned funding. 

 Time  Frame—ongoing 

o Resources—Health Services Chief Financial Officer and Staff 

Task 3 

 Twice yearly review of 1991 & 2011 Realignment  Income & Spending  

o Success Criteria—able to identify weaknesses in planned funding. 

 Time  Frame—ongoing 

o Resources—Health Services Chief Financial Officer and Staff 

Task 4 

 Twice yearly review of Federal Financial Participation Income & Spending 

o Success Criteria—able to identify weaknesses in planned funding. 

 Time  Frame—ongoing 

o Resources—Health Services Chief Financial Officer and Staff   

Goal – Improving services for those with a mental illness with federal funding, state realignment 

funding, and county funding. 

Task 1   

 Assure that services are funded are being provided   



o Success Criteria—Reports from BH Admin that show care provided is being accessed 

 Time Frame—each program or incident documented. 

 Resources --BH Admin., Onsite visits, Feedback from patients and 

consumers 

 

Task 2 

 Work on the 3 year Plan and Yearly update 

o Success Criteria— 

 Time Frame – Ongoing emphasis on October through December 

 MHSA Staff, CPAW 

Task 3 

 Public Hearing on MHSA Plan   

Goal -- Effectively tracking those who are seriously mentally ill who have housing, those who use shelter 

beds, and those that are homeless so that the committee can study options that are working and 

advocate for programs that will reduce homelessness 

Task 1  

 Reduce homelessness for those with a mental illness 

Task 2 

 Improve housing availability at all levels 

Task 3  

 Learn of housing models that are successful and have a proven track record 

 



MHSA-Finance goals-2018—Douglas Dunn 
 
1. Perform intelligent oversight of Behavioral Health budget and expenditures. 
 
2. Make intelligent advisory budget recommendations to the Mental Health 

Commission.   
 In order to fulfill the above 2 goals, on an ongoing basis, consistently receive the 

following per contract summary budget and expenditure information :  
A. Federal Financial Participation (MedicaCare / Medi-Cal),  
B. Realignment (1991 and 2011),  
C. Mental Health Services Act (MHSA),  
D. Other funding streams (grants and county general budget contribution) 
E. Locked facility (LPS conservatorship, state hospital, detention, and juvenile 

hall) costs of care for the severely mentally ill.  iture  information.  
 
3. Integrate AOD funding streams and issues into MHSA-Finance committee 

discussions. 
A. Obtain most recent year contract budget summary information for each AOD 

contract. 
B. Obtain budget information for 1115 Medi-Cal Drug waiver.  May require working 

with the Public Health Dept. which originally pursued with waiver. 
C. Obtain “Whole Person Care” per year (2017-2020) projected budget information. 

 
4. In our budget oversight role, advocate for additional dual diagnosis care facilities 

throughout the county by leveraging funding streams in order to reduce “revolving 
door” crisis care.   

 



 

	
Proposed	MHSA/Finance	Committee	

Goals	2018‐	Diana	MaKieve	
 
Review and educate ourselves/commission regarding the revenue streams for 
mental health services for aging adults in Contra Costa County.  Are we set to meet 
the possible growth of this population in both revenue and services in the coming 
years?  
 
Realignment income and spending - Review and educate ourselves/commission 
regarding the income and spending; what potential is there for change, plus or 
minus, over time.  What are the potential gaps/weaknesses to anticipate/identify?  
 
MHSA Budget oversight and Program and Physical Review - educate 
ourselves/commission regarding improvement to outcomes for 
consumers.  Identify/anticipate gaps in services or funding to continue the 
improvement of outcomes for consumers.    
 



2017‐2018	MHSA/Finance	Committee	
Goals‐	by	Sam	Yoshioka	

 

1. The MHSA/Finance committee’s name should be changed 
to Finance Committee and leave “MHSA” out of the name 
 

2. The Finance Committee should be knowledgeable with the  
following page in the Contra Costa County Fiscal Year 2017‐
2018 Recommended Budget:  

 

‐Health Services 
‐Health and Human Services 
‐Behavioral Health Division‐ Mental Health (page 264) 
 

3. More to come!  











































































Contra Costa Health Services

Mental Health Division 

1991 and 2011 Realignment Spending Information

Projected Fiscal Year 2016-2017

FY16/17 Projected 
Realignment Revenue based 

on most recent State 
Allocation

FY16/17 Projected 
Expenditures by 

Program

1991 Realignment: 28,992,649$                         1991 Realignment 
State Hospital 5,563,766$           

2011 Realignment: 29,647,017                           Managed Care Inpatients 1,167,773             
Institutions for Mental Disease (IMD) 4,490,553             

Total Realignment Allocation 58,639,666$                         Adult Contracts 11,500,142           

Board & Care 1,232,499             
County Adult Clinics 5,037,916             
1991 Realignment Expenditures 28,992,649$         

2011 Realignment
Network Providers: Psychiatrists/LCSWs/Misc. Contracts 2,647,541$           
Children's Contracts 20,827,357           

County Children's Clinics 6,172,120             
2011 Realignment Expenditures 29,647,017$         

Total Realignment Expenditures 58,639,666$         

1/12/20171:44 PM
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Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) 

Program and Fiscal Review 

 

I. Date of On-site Review:  June 7, 2017  
Date of Exit Meeting:  September 6, 2017  
 

II. Review Team:  Stephanie Chenard, Warren Hayes, Liza Molina-Huntley 

 
III. Name of Program:   C.O.P.E. Family Support Center 

 2280 Diamond Blvd., Suite 460 
 Concord, CA 94520    
 

IV. Program Description.  C.O.P.E.’s mission is to prevent child abuse, by 
providing comprehensive services in order to strengthen family relationships and 
bonds, empower parents, encourage healthy relationships, and cultivate 
nurturing family units to encourage an optimal environment for the healthy growth 
and development of parents and children through parent education. 

In partnership with First 5 Contra Costa Children, Family Commission and 
County Behavioral Health, C.O.P.E. is funded to deliver Positive Parenting 
Program (“Triple P”) classes to parent of children age 0 – 17.  The C.O.P.E 
Family Support Center will provide approximately 21 services using the 
evidence-based Triple P — Positive Parenting Program Level 2 Seminar, Level 3 
Primary Care, Level 4 Group, Level 5 Pathways, Level 5 Enhanced, Level 5 
Transitions, and Level 5 Lifestyles Multi-Family Support Groups. 
 
The program utilizes a self-regulatory model that focuses on strengthening the 
positive attachment between parents and children by helping parents to develop 
effective skills to manage common child behavioral issues. C.O.P.E.’s targeted 
population includes caregivers residing in underserved communities throughout 
Contra Costa County. 
 
All classes are available in Arabic, Farsi, Portuguese, Spanish and/or English 
languages and level 4 materials are also available in Spanish and Arabic. In 
regard to the curriculum on Triple P Parenting, C.O.P.E. provides management 
briefings, orientation and community awareness meetings to partner agencies. 
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They support and organize trainings, including pre-accreditation trainings, fidelity 
oversight and clinical and peer support in an effort to build and maintain a pool of 
Triple P practitioners 
 

V. Purpose of Review.  Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is 
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health 
Services Act.  Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was 
conducted of the above program.  The results of this review are contained herein, 
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided, b) 
more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and 
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.  
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this 
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this 
program in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the future. 
 
 

VI. Summary of Findings. 
 

Topic Met 
Standard 

Notes 

1. Deliver services according to the 
values of the MHSA 

Met Consumers and family 
members indicate the 
program meets the values 
of MHSA 

2. Serve the agreed upon target 
population. 

Met Program improves timely 
access to an underserved 
population. 

3. Provide the services for which 
funding was allocated. 

Met Funds services consistent 
with the agreed upon 
Service Work Plan. 

4. Meet the needs of the community 
and/or population. 

Met Services are consistent 
with the Three Year Plan 

5. Serve the number of individuals 
that have been agreed upon.   

Met Target service numbers 
are reached. 

6. Achieve the outcomes that have 
been agreed upon.  

Met Program meets its 
outcomes  

7. Quality Assurance Met No reported grievances.   

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality 
of protected health information.  

Met HIPAA compliant privacy 
policies in place. 
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9. Staffing sufficient for the program Met Staffing level supports 
targeted service numbers. 

10. Annual independent fiscal audit Met No material or significant 
weaknesses were noted.  

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to 
deliver and sustain the services 

Met CCBHS is C.O.P.E.’s 
major source of funding.  
Suggest pursuing 
additional funding 
streams, such as voluntary 
contributions, for program 
growth and sustainability.   

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with 
generally accepted accounting 
principles  

Met Experienced staff 
implement sound check 
and balance system.   

13. Documentation sufficient to 
support invoices 

Met Utilizes appropriate 
supporting documentation 
protocol. 

14. Documentation sufficient to 
support allowable expenditures 

Met Recommend that the 
budget reflect all funding 
sources for PEI program.     

15. Documentation sufficient to 
support expenditures invoiced in 
appropriate fiscal year 

Met No billings noted for 
previous fiscal year 
expenses. 

16. Administrative costs sufficiently 
justified and appropriate to the 
total cost of the program 

Met Recommend all costs 
currently charged as 
indirect be reflected in the 
future in personnel and 
operating cost categories.  

17. Insurance policies sufficient to 
comply with contract 

Met Necessary insurance is in 
place 

18.  Effective communication between 
contract manager and contractor 

Met The County and program 
meet regularly. 
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VII. Review Results. The review covered the following areas: 
 

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act 
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).  
Does the program collaborate with the community, provide an integrated service 
experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be culturally competent, 
and be client and family driven. 
Method.  Consumer, family member and service provider interviews and 
consumer surveys. 
Discussion. 
 
Survey Results 
We received 7 responses to the survey.  The majority of the survey responses 
were consistent with consumer interviews; namely, they show a positive 
evaluation of the program; and that the program adheres to MHSA values. 
 

Questions  Responses: n=7 
Please indicate how strongly you 
agree or disagree with the 
following statements regarding 
persons who work with you: 

Strongly 
Agree  

4 

Agree 
 

3 

Disagree 
 

2 

Strongly 
Disagree 

1 

I don’t 
know 

n/a 

1. Help me improve my health and 
wellness. 

Average score: 3.57 (n=7) 

2. Allow me to decide what my own 
strengths and needs   

Average score: 4.00 (n=6) 

3. Work with me to determine the 
services that are most helpful 

Average score: 3.71 (n=7) 

4. Provide services that are sensitive 
to my cultural background. 

Average score: 3.20 (n=5) 

5. Provide services that are in my 
preferred language 

Average score: 3.86 (n=7) 

6. Help me in getting needed health, 
employment, education and other 
benefits and services.  

Average score: 3.40 (n=5) 

7. Are open to my opinions as to 
how services should be provided 

Average score: 3.86 (n=7) 
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8. What does this program do well? 
 

• Provide help necessary for my 
communication in co-parenting 

• Catered to my specific needs (each 
individuals specific needs) 

• I think it does everything well, It opened my 
mind a little more about what co-parenting is 
about. It helps me as a single parent who 
doesn't have the other partner around. 

• Bringing together parents for mutual support 
and also providing support with various 
specific issues. Practitioners listen and are 
responsive with relevant advice in difficult 
situations. 
 

9. What does this program need to 
improve upon? 

• We need books. 
• Maybe extending it a little bit longer. I took a 

12-week class once per week and would 
have loved more classes. 

• Being a bit more organized through 
organization the class continued to improve 
 

10. What needed services and 
supports are missing? 

• Give more support for parents going through 
transition (divorce, etc). So that they can co-
parent better. 

• More focus on mental health (for this specific 
course). Addressing these issues sooner 
and possibly having another speaker from 
another organization to address insured and 
medical individuals (maybe someone from 
John Muir) 
 

11.  How important is this program in 
helping you improve your health 
and wellness, live a self-directed 
life, and reach your full potential? 

Very 
Important 

4 

Important 
 

3 

Somewhat 
Important 

2 

Not 
Important 

1 
Average score: 3.29 (n=7) 

12. Any additional comments? 
 

• This program has helped me gain 
knowledge in a variety of social services 
areas. C.O.P.E. goes above and beyond for 
their clients.   

• The teacher was great. I felt very 
comfortable in the class. We felt like a little 
family. I look forward to talking more classes 
in the future. 
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• I liked that I got a strong sense of dedication 
on the part of everyone at C.O.P.E. involved 
in the class. Helpful to share parent contact 
information for those parents who are 
interested in extra mutual support outside 
the program. 

 
 
 
Consumer Interview 
The consumer interview was attended by seven people all of whom attend the 
parenting classes offered. The length of times that each family had been involved 
with the program varied from six weeks to nine months.  Consumers reported 
their initial referrals to the C.O.P.E. classes and/or counseling programs were 
through recommendations from Children and Family Services, School 
Attendance Review Board (SARB), and individual therapists.  Overall, the 
consumers were very appreciative of the services provided by C.O.P.E.  They all 
felt generally that there was cultural grounding for them in their treatment, and 
that their input was solicited and valued as part of the treatment plan.  During the 
interview, some of the other things specifically identified as positives of the 
program were:   
• Peer component to groups was extremely valuable – felt secure and 

supportive, and helped relieve feelings of isolation. 
• Facilitators demonstrated empathy – felt like they were also “peers”. 
• Gender mix was good – nice to have half men and women (men in the group 

advised that having father support was very helpful). 
• Bringing in a juvenile probation officer also gave parents a safe setting to 

explore risky issues. 
• Dinner time sessions, and sharing a meal/food with the group made it feel 

warmer and more welcoming. 
• Co-parenting classes for parents who were not living together were beneficial. 
 
These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values.  However, the 
families also identified some areas of improvement.  Several consumers 
mentioned they would like to have had more of a focus on mental health 
challenges for themselves and children.  Consumers also expressed the desire 
for more types of groups.  One family also mentioned they wished they had found 
out earlier about the parenting classes, prior to their involvement with social 
services; they wished that their faith community, or other community supports – 
particularly in the Latino community – had more information about the program.  
Lastly, several consumers mentioned that transportation could be a barrier to 



7 
 

regularly attending groups or individual sessions.  While C.O.P.E. delivers 
classes in the east part of the county, the availability of those often didn’t fit the 
parent’s schedule. 
 
Staff Interviews 
In addition to its core management team, C.O.P.E. has a few full-time 
administrative and support staff to help with operations.  The program line staff 
comes primarily from a pool of social workers and other mental health 
professionals, who have been trained and certified to lead the Triple P classes.  
Most of these professionals have other employment, which presented a 
challenge to get most of them together for a face-to-face meeting.  However, we 
were able to meet with one of the trainers, who took time from her normal full-
time employment to meet with the review team and talk about her experience 
with C.O.P.E. and the Triple P program.   
 
The trainer we spoke with is a full-time social worker, and her experience in this 
field and working with families attracted her to C.O.P.E.’s program.  She has 
worked with C.O.P.E. as a trainer, delivering classes for several years.  She 
noted that particularly in the past two years, her class sizes have been steadily 
increasing, and that demand seems to be growing beyond C.O.P.E.’s capacity to 
keep up.  She also revealed that some of the positives about the program are 
being able to work with parents who may have been referred as part of a 
mandated process, are reluctant and perhaps a bit resistant, but the nature of the 
peer component and the materials itself allowed them to quickly and fully 
engage.  She feels that there is strong support and assistance provided by 
C.O.P.E. to the trainers and ensuring fidelity to the Triple-P model. 
 
C.O.P.E. strives to be a learning community where individuals learn how to 
manage their challenges, and serve as a provider of direct prevention services.   
 
Results.  C.O.P.E. delivers services according to the values of the MHSA.  The 
program delivers programming at locations that are generally accessible to 
participants; staff is culturally and linguistically competent and maintains close 
ties to the community it serves.   
 
 

2. Serve the agreed upon target population.  For Prevention and Early 
Intervention, does the program serve individuals and families who are at risk for 
developing a serious mental illness or serious emotional disturbance.  Does the 



8 
 

program serve the agreed upon target population (such as age group, 
underserved community).  
Method.  Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a 
random sampling of client charts or case files. 
Discussion.  C.O.P.E.’s target population is Contra Costa County parents of 
children and youth with identified special needs. Often these individuals and 
families are subject to many high risk factors for developing mental health 
problems. The program also serves Hispanic families, many of whom are 
monolingual.  
Results. The program serves the agreed upon target population. 
 

3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated.  Does the program 
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon. 
Method.  Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular 
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service 
provider interviews.  
Discussion.  Monthly service summaries as well as semi-annual reports show 
that the program is consistently engaged in outreach activities, is providing 
support groups and individual navigation supports.  
Results.  The program provides the services for which funding was allocated. 
 

4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population.  Is the program meeting 
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed.  Has the 
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community 
program planning process.  Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year 
Program and Expenditure Plan.   
Method.  Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence 
to the Community Program Planning Process.  Match the service work plan or 
program description with the Three Year Plan.  Compare with consumer/family 
member and service provider interviews.  Review client surveys. 
Discussion. Programming for Building Connection in Underserved Cultural 
Communities was included in the original PEI plan that was approved in May 
2009 and included in subsequent plan updates. The program has been 
authorized by the Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current MHSA 
Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan as well as the proposed PEI 
regulations on prevention programs.  Programs and strategies pursue timely 
access and linkage to mental health services for individuals and families from 
underserved populations. Interviews with service providers and program 
participants support the notion that the program meets its goals and the needs of 
the community it serves. 
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Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population for 
which it is designated. 
 

5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon.  Has the 
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program 
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the 
last three years. 
Method.  Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly 
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets  
and case files. 
Discussion.  According to the Service Work Plan in the contract between the 
program and the County, the program’s target service numbers is to serve 204 
parents through Triple P seminars and group classes.  Over the past three years, 
the program has consistently exceeded their target numbers. 
Results.  The program serves the number of people that have been agreed 
upon, and consistently exceeds the target enrollment number. 
 

6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon.  Is the program meeting 
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending. 
Method.  Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes 
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of 
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts.  Outcome 
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric 
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of 
life, and cost effectiveness.  Analyze the level of success by the context, as 
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group, 
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a 
generally accepted standard. 
Discussion.  C.O.P.E. has a few well-defined primary program objectives as part 
of the service work plan including:  improving parenting skills, increasing sense of 
competence in parenting abilities, improving self-awareness of parenting issues, 
reducing parental stress, improving mental health outcomes for both children and 
parents.  The program provides timely semi-annual reports summarizing their 
progress towards meeting their program outcomes.   
Results.  Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives.  
 

7. Quality Assurance.  How does the program assure quality of service provision. 
Method.  Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization 
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of 
quality of service review. 
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Discussion. Contra Costa County did not receive any grievances toward the 
program.  The program has an internal grievance policy in place.  Since the 
program does not provide billable services, it not subject to utilization review. 
Results. The program has a quality assurance process in place.   
 

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information.  What 
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the 
protocol.   
Method.  Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with 
the observed implementation of the program’s implementation of a protocol for 
safeguarding protected patient health information. 
Discussion.  C.O.P.E. has written policies and provides staff training on HIPAA 
requirements and safeguarding of patient information. Client charts are kept in 
locked file cabinets, behind a locked door and comply with HIPAA standards. 
Clients and program participants are informed about their privacy rights and rules 
of confidentiality. 
Results. The program complies with HIPAA requirements.    
 

9. Staffing sufficient for the program.  Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver 
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous 
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support. 
Method.  Match history of program response with organization chart, staff 
interviews and duty statements. 
Discussion.  C.O.P.E.’s mental health team has a sufficient number and type of 
staff to support their operations.  The experience level of the trainers tends 
towards highly experienced mental health and social work professionals.  
C.O.P.E. provides training to certify trainers in the Triple-P model and continues 
to provide ongoing support and training.  However, as noted in #1, the demand 
for the program seems to be outpacing C.O.P.E.’s capacity.  It is recommended 
that C.O.P.E. build relationships with other organizations in the community to 
explore potential partnerships to help keep up with increased demand. 
Results.  Sufficient staffing is in place to serve the number of clients outlined in 
the most recent Service Work Plan.   
 

10. Annual independent fiscal audit.  Did the organization have an annual 
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any 
findings.  
Method.  Obtain and review audited financial statements.  If applicable, discuss 
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager. 
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Discussion.  C.O.P.E. is a non-profit corporation established in 2010 to prevent 
child abuse and encourage healthy growth and development of parents and 
children through the educational Positive Parenting Program.   The organization 
has a total operating budget of approximately $500,000, and receives the 
majority of its funding through financial agreements with CCBHS and First Five of 
California.  Independent auditor reports from the last three years indicate that 
C.O.P.E. is not at risk for adverse fiscal consequences due to their fiscal and 
accounting systems.   
Results.  Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2013-14, 14-15 and 15-16 
were provided and reviewed.  No material or significant findings were noted.   
 

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services.  Does 
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient 
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program.   
Method.  Review audited financial statements and Board of Directors meeting 
minutes.  Interview fiscal manager of program. 
Discussion.  The organization appears to be operating within the budget 
constraints provided by their authorized contract amount, and thus appears to be 
able to sustain their stated costs of delivering PEI services for the entirety of the 
fiscal year.  The site visit discussion surfaced that current revenue streams have 
constrained C.O.P.E.’s capacity to expand and respond to the number of parents 
wanting to participate in the Triple P classes.  Since MHSA PEI funding is not 
expected to increase in the foreseeable future, C.O.P.E. was encouraged to 
explore strategies by which participating parents could contribute to the costs of 
the program, should they desire to do so. 
Results.  Fiscal resources are currently sufficient to deliver and sustain current 
level of services.  It is suggested that C.O.P.E. pursuing additional funding 
streams.     
 

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal 
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Method.  Interview with fiscal manager. 
Discussion.  The Finance Manager is experienced with supporting non-profit 
organizations of this size, appears well qualified, and described established 
protocols that are in place to enable a check and balance system to assure 
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.  The organization 
uses an established software program for personnel and administrative activities.       
Results.  Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
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13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices.  Do the organization’s financial 

reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no 
duplicate billing. 
Method.  Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices.  Interview fiscal 
manager of program. 
Discussion.  A randomly selected invoice for each of the last three years was 
matched with supporting documentation provided by the agency.  A clear and 
accurate connection was established between expenses incurred and submitted 
invoices.  It appears that there is not duplicate billing to the major two funding 
sources of CCBHS and First Five, and that staff time and expenses dedicated to 
PEI activities are at least equal to or greater than the amount billed to CCBHS.   
Results.  Uses established software program with appropriate supporting 
documentation protocol.  
 

14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures.  Does 
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and 
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and 
operating expenditures charged to the program. 
Method.  Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for 
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and 
operating expenditures invoiced to the county. 
Discussion.  Line item personnel and operating costs were matched against the 
approved CCBHS budget line items and reviewed for appropriateness.  
Supporting documentation only became clear when the First Five funding source 
was added.  Should the CCBHS contract be audited this could make it difficult to 
accurately match funding sources to total PEI program costs and justify 
respective billings to the funding sources.  It does appear that documentation 
could support allowable expenditures, and that expenses submitted were 
consistent with line items that are appropriate to support the service delivery.   
Results.  Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time and operating 
costs appear to be justified and documented.  It is recommended that the total 
budget for fielding the Triple P program be depicted, and that all funding sources 
for this effort be specified, to include that portion in each line item that is funded 
by the CCBHS contract.       
 

15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate 
fiscal year.  Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support 
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which 
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows). 
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Method.  Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.  
Interview fiscal manager of program. 
Discussion.  Total contract billing was within contract limits, with no billing by 
this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year.   
Results.  C.O.P.E. appears to be implementing an appropriate year end closing 
system.   
  

16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost 
of the program.  Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs 
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program. 
Method.  Review methodology and statistics used to allocate 
administrative/indirect costs.  Interview fiscal manager of program. 
Discussion.  The management and general costs reflected in the independent 
auditor’s report support an indirect cost amount that is in the CCBHS contract 
budget.  However, the contract listed budget rate of 12.67% is misleading, in that 
while it is a correct calculation for the CCBHS contract revenue of $231,750, the 
calculation does not include the First Five revenue that supports a total Triple P 
program cost of over $400,000.  Including First Five revenue would reduce the 
indirect rate to approximately 5%.  It is recommended that in future budget 
calculations C.O.P.E. not budget an indirect rate, and include current indirect 
costs in the personnel and operating cost categories.  This would eliminate the 
need to justify an indirect rate methodology.  A review of the type of costs 
currently attributable to indirect costs could easily be added to operating cost line 
items.       
Results.  Indirect costs charged appear reasonable.  Recommend all costs 
currently charged as indirect be reflected in the future in personnel and operating 
cost categories.    
 

17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract.  Does the organization 
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the 
contract. 
Method.  Review insurance policies. 
Discussion. The program provided certificate of commercial general liability 
insurance, automobile liability, umbrella liability, professional liability and 
directors and officers liability policies that were in effect at the time of the site 
visit. 
Results. The program complies with contract insurance requirements. 
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18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor.  Do 
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly 
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise. 
Method.  Interview contract manager and contractor staff. 
Discussion.  Program staff and county communicate regularly and in recent 
months increasingly to discuss outcomes and reporting requirements.  
Results.  The program has good communication with the contract manager.  

 

VIII. Summary of Results. 
 
C.O.P.E. is committed to delivering culturally and linguistically appropriate mental 
health services to Contra Costa County parents of children and youth with 
identified special needs.  Their prevention and early intervention services seek to 
provide families with grounded skills and supports to manage their challenges.  
The C.O.P.E. programs adhere to the values of MHSA and serving their target 
population.  The program is meeting and often exceeding the outcomes detailed 
in their contract.  C.O.P.E. appears to be a financially sound organization that 
follows generally accepted accounting principles, and maintains documentation 
that supports agreed upon service expenditures.  
 
 

IX. Findings for Further Attention. 
 

• It is recommended that C.O.P.E. build relationships with other 
organizations in the community to explore potential partnerships to help 
keep up with increased demand. 
 

• It is recommended that 1) the total budget for fielding the Triple P program 
be depicted, and that all funding sources for this effort be specified such 
as First Five, and include that portion in each line item that is funded by 
the CCBHS contract; and 2) all costs currently charged as indirect be 
reflected in the future in the personnel and operating cost categories.    

 
 

X. Next Review Date.   June 2020 
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XI. Appendices. 

Appendix A – Program Description  

Appendix B – Service Provider Budget  

Appendix C – Yearly External Fiscal Audit  

Appendix D – Organization Chart 

 

XII. Working Documents that Support Findings. 

Consumer Listing 

Consumer, Family Member Surveys 

Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews 

County MHSA Monthly Financial Report  

Progress Reports, Outcomes 

Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation  

Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan  

Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes  

Insurance Policies  

MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s) 

 

 

 

  



 
 

APPENDIX A 

Program Description/Service Work Plan  

Counseling Options Parent Education (C.O.P.E.) 
Point of Contact: Cathy Botello 
Contact Information: 2280 Diamond Blvd #460, Concord, Ca 94520. (925) 689-5811 
cathy.botello@copefamilysupport.org 

1. General Description of the Organization 
C.O.P.E.’s mission is to prevent child abuse, by providing comprehensive services in 
order to strengthen family relationships and bonds, empower parents, encourage 
healthy relationships, and cultivate nurturing family units to encourage an optimal 
environment for the healthy growth and development of parents and children through 
parent education.  

2.  Programs: Triple P Positive Parenting Education and Support (PEI) 
a. Scope of Services:  

In partnership with First 5 Contra Costa Children, Family Commission and 
County Behavioral Health, C.O.P.E. is funded to deliver Positive Parenting 
Program classes to parent of children age 0 – 17.  The C.O.P.E Family Support 
Center (Contractor) will provide approximately 21 services using the evidence-
based Triple P — Positive Parenting Program Level 2 Seminar, Level 3 Primary 
Care, Level 4 Group, Level 5 Pathways, Level 5 Enhanced, Level 5 Transitions, 
Level 5 Lifestyles Multi-Family Support Groups, at no cost to parents of children 
two years to seventeen years of age. 
 
 The program utilizes a self-regulatory model that focuses on strengthening the 
positive attachment between parents and children by helping parents to develop 
effective skills to manage common child behavioral issues. Our targeted 
population includes caregivers residing in underserved communities throughout 
Contra Costa County. 
 
All classes are available in Spanish and/or English and level 4 is available in 
Arabic and Farsi. In regards to the curriculum on Triple P Parenting, C.O.P.E. 
provides management briefings, orientation and community awareness meetings 
to partner agencies. They support and organize trainings, including pre-
accreditation trainings, fidelity oversight and clinical and peer support in an effort 
to build and maintain a pool of Triple P practitioners 

b. Target Population: Contra Costa County parents of children and youth with 
identified special needs.  

c. Payment Limit:  $231,750(6 – 17), through First Five: $77,250 (0 – 5).  



 
 

d. Number served: For FY 15/16: 230 (6 – 17) and 241 (0 – 5).   
e. Outcomes:  

• Completed 28 parent education classes of for various levels of parenting 
problems. 

• Pre and Post Test show improvements in measures of parenting style 
(laxness, over-reactivity, and hostility), decrease of depression/anxiety 
measures, and decrease in frequency of child problem behavior, 
improvement in child adjustment behavior and caregivers level of stress about 
these behaviors.  
 

 

  



Service Work Plan 

 

Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center      Number: #24-725-1 

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program 
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017 
 
 

  Initials: _____/ _____     County / Contractor  

I. Scope of Services  
 
The C.O.P.E Family Support Center (Contractor) will provide approximately 21 services using the evidence-
based Triple P — Positive Parenting Program Level 2 Seminar, Level 3 Primary Care, Level 4 Group, Level 
5 Pathways, Level 5 Enhanced, Level 5 Transitions, Level 5 Lifestyles Multi-Family Support Groups, at no 
cost to parents of children six years to seventeen years of age.  
 
The C.O.P.E Family Support Center (Contractor) will provide approximately 17 services using the evidence-
based Triple P — Positive Parenting Program Level 2 Seminar, Level 3 Primary Care, Level 4 Group, Level 
5 Pathways, Level 5 Enhanced, Level 5 Transitions, Level 5 Lifestyles Multi-Family Support Groups, at no 
cost to parents of children two years to five years of age through a contract with First 5 Contra Costa 
Children and Families Commission in partnership with Mental Health Services Act in partnership with Contra 
Costa Mental Health. 
 
 The program utilizes a self-regulatory model that focuses on strengthening the positive attachment between 
parents and children by helping parents to develop effective skills to manage common child behavioral 
issues. Our targeted population includes caregivers residing in underserved communities throughout Contra 
Costa County. 

A. Provide fidelity, technical assistance and a co-facilitation staff for up to twenty-one (21) Triple P-Positive 
Parenting intervention with qualifying partner community agencies and certified accredited Triple P 
practitioners.   

B. Contractor will provide a management briefing/orientations/outreach to partnering agencies.  The 
presentations are designed to outline the comprehensive overview of the Triple P multi-level system (e.g. 
levels of intervention, training programs, service delivery options) as required by MI-ISA and First 5, 
Contra Costa. The management briefing provides an opportunity to discuss the implementation of the 
program and ways to effectively support the partnering agency’s staff while implementing the Triple P 
program. 

C. Coordinate Train the Trainers training in level most needed in Contra Costa County for up to twenty (20) 
Practitioners in Contra Costa County. Contractor will provide competency-based pre-accreditation 
training hours in preparation for the accreditation process.  Pre-accreditation trainings are designed to 
provide an opportunity for individualized feedback on skill development, opportunities to practice 
specific competencies and clarifying program content relevant to quiz questions. 

D. Contractor will provide monthly peer support meetings designed to provide supervision to problem solve 
issues related to the delivery of Triple P to parents and support a continuing education environment that 
will facilitate the transfer of learning from the training course to everyday practice. 

E. Contractor will provide a Triple P Learning Community designed to promote capacity to offer evidence 
based Triple P programs by highly trained and qualified practitioners.  Accredited Practitioners will be 
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Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center      Number: #24-725-1 

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program 
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017 
 
 

  Initials: _____/ _____     County / Contractor  

Initials: ____   _____  
County / Contractor 

entitled to opportunities for additional trainings and updates in the Triple P System.  Practitioners will be 
able to apply their learning skills as part of the Triple P Learning Community through their involvement 
in the Learning Community. 

F. Contractor will provide pre and post assessment information and input data to provide analysis and 
outcomes to practitioners for use in the coaching component and future referrals to other levels of Triple 
P.  Contactor will also document demographics, attendance, and delivery of incentives, etc and provide a 
report to funder. 

G. Contractor will oversee fidelity through use of checklists and continued learning opportunities and 
trainings for practitioners. 

H. Contractor will attend monthly SARB meeting designed to promote Triple P Positive Parenting class 
attendance for mandated parents who have children with serious issues at school. 

I. Contractor will attend School Age and Teen Parent Truancy Courts to promote Triple P System to the 
courts and outreach to at risk parenting in the county. 

J. Contractor will provide outreach that is engaging, educating to potential responders. 

K. Contractor will outreach to the following but are not limited to, families, employers, primary health care, 
social services, faith based organizations and others in a position to identify early signs of MI, and 
provide support and/or refer for treatment. 

L. Contractor will outreach to individuals with signs and symptoms of mental illness, so that they can 
recognize and respond to their own symptoms.  

M. Contractor will design and implement services to help create access and linkage to mental health 
treatment 

N. Contractor will design, implement and promote services in ways that improve timely access to 
mental health treatment services for persons and/or families from underserved populations. 

O. Contractor will design, implement and promote services using strategies that are non-
stigmatizing and non-discriminatory." 

 

II. Types of Mental Health Services/ Service Related Activities 

Contractor will provide evidence based Triple P Positive Parenting Program Seminars and Level 4 
group classes and Level 5 classes to parents throughout the county in collaboration with Contra Costa 
Mental Health by Certified Triple P Parenting Program Providers.  



Service Work Plan 

 

Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center      Number: #24-725-1 

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program 
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017 
 
 

  Initials: _____/ _____     County / Contractor  

 

III. Program Facilities / Hours of Operation / Staffing 
 
A. Program Facility and Contact 

 
C.O.P.E Family Support Center 
Cathy Botello, (925) 818-7583, cathy.botello@comcast.net 
2280 Diamond Blvd., Suite 460 
Concord, CA  94520 
 
(925) 689-5811 office 
(925) 818-7583 
 
B. Hours of Operation 

 
Mon through Friday 
9:00 am to 5:00 pm  
 
C. Program Staffing 

 
Executive Director -.44 FTE 44% 
Program Director – 0.22 FTE 22% 
Program Coordinator – 0.33 FTE 33% 
Admin Assistant – .26 FTE 26% 
Program Assistant - .22 FTE 22% 
Evaluation Assistant – 0.22 FTE 22% 
Technical Support – 0.01 FTE 1% 
Business/Accounting Manager– 0.32 FTE 32% 
Childcare- .19 FTE 19% 
Practitioners -61 FTE 61% 
Clinical Supervisor - .02 FTE 2% 
 

 
 

IV. Volume of Services to be provided 
Contractor will provide evidence based Triple P Positive Parenting Program seminars and group classes to 
approximately 204 parents throughout the county. 
 

V. Billing Procedure 
 

mailto:cathy.botello@comcast.net
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Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center      Number: #24-725-1 

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program 
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017 
 
 

  Initials: _____/ _____     County / Contractor  

Contractor shall submit a Demand for Payment (Form: D15.19) for services rendered to Contra Costa 
Mental Health. Contractor shall attach to the billing a Monthly Contract Service/Expenditure Summary 
(Form: MHP029) with actual expenditure information for the billing period. 

Demands for payment should be submitted by mail to: 

 
Michelle Rodriguez-Ziemer, LCSW  
Mental Health Services Act  Program Supervisor  
Prevention and Early Intervention  
Contra Costa County Health Services  
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 200  
Martinez, CA  94553  
Ph. 925-957-7548  
Michelle.Rodriguez-Ziemer@hsd.cccounty.us 

 
VI. Outcome Statements 

 
Contractor will track the following outcomes with measures to be determined in collaboration with First 5 
Contra Costa Country, Mental Health Services and C.O.P.E. Support Center. 

a) Improve parenting skills. 
b) Increase sense of competence in parenting abilities. 
c) Improve self-awareness of parenting issues. 
d) Reduce parental stress 
e) Improve mental health outcomes for both children and parents. 
 

VII. Measures of Success 
 

A. 80% of parents/caregivers enrolled in Level 2, Seminar Series will report an increase in 
confidence based on a parent survey after attending sessions in each of the various  
Triple P Discussion Group topics;." 

B.  80% of parents/caregivers enrolled in Level 4, Group &/or Group Teen Triple P Series will show 
increase skill development, competency and confidence in utilizing parenting skills. 
Improvement will be measured by a pre and post assessment after completing an eight to ten 
week intensive group training session. 

C. 80% of parents/caregivers receiving Level 5, Enhanced Triple P individualized intervention will 
report an increase in their ability to manage their mood and cope with everyday stress. 
Improvement will be measured by a pre and post assessment after completing two to four weeks 
of intensive individualized sessions. (Enhanced Triple P is a more intensive intervention of child 
behavior and family functioning, Group or Teen Group is a pre-requisite for Enhanced).  

tel:925-957-7548
mailto:Michelle.Rodriguez-Ziemer@hsd.cccounty.us
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Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center      Number: #24-725-1 

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program 
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017 
 
 

  Initials: _____/ _____     County / Contractor  

D. 80% of parents/caregivers enrolled in Level 5, Lifestyles Triple P will show an increase in skill 
development and strategies for managing their child’s weight by introducing gradual permanent changes 
in their family’s lifestyle (e.g., healthier family eating, encourage physical activity). 

 E. 80% of parents/caregivers receiving Level 5, Transitions Triple P Group intervention will report 
an increase in their ability to manage the transition from a two-parent family to a single-parent 
family. It focuses on skills to resolve conflicts with former partners and how to cope positively 
with stress.  

 
 

VIII. Measurement / Evaluation Tool 
 
A. Family Background Form- pre only, all workshops,  
B. Eyberg Child Behavior Inventory- pre & post for all workshops, except seminars, 
C. Parent Scale – pre & post for all workshops except seminars, 
D. Depression, Anxiety, Stress Scale (DASS) – pre & post for all workshops except seminars, 
E. Parent Satisfaction Survey-pre & post for all workshops, 
F. Other tools as needed 
 
 

IX. Reports Required 
 

Contractor is asked to submit a Demographics and Outcomes Measure Report to document the 
program's plan/do/check/act quality process and to track statistical information (i.e. age, gender, sexual 
orientation, ethnicity, race, veteran status, language, and client residence) of the target population(s) 
actually served, as defined by the Contractor and approved by the County during contract award and 
negotiation process. Demographic Reports are due on 1/15/2017 and 7/15/2017. Annual Outcomes 
Measure Report is due on 7/15/2017 

Please submit all evaluation reports via email to: 
 

Michelle Rodriguez-Ziemer, LCSW  
Mental Health Services Act  Program Supervisor  
Prevention and Early Intervention  
Michelle.Rodriguez-Ziemer@hsd.cccounty.us 
 

X. Other 
 

Promotional materials for the program should identify the funding source: "Funded by the Mental Health 
Services Act in partnership with Contra Costa Mental Health". Contractor must attend the Regional 
Roundtable meetings sponsored by Contra Costa Mental Health. 

 
 

mailto:Michelle.Rodriguez-Ziemer@hsd.cccounty.us


 
 

APPENDIX B 

Service Provider Budget 

 

  



BUDGET OF ESTIMATED PROGRAM EXPENDITURES

Agency: 
Number  24-725   _

A.

1.
a. Personnel Salaries and Benefits 166,075$ 

b. Operational Costs (Direct) 39,608

c. Indirect Costs 26,067     

2. 231,750$ 

B.
(To be collected and provided by Contractor)  0             

C. 231,750$ 

D.

1.
2.

E.

F.

May be changed in excess of 15% in any fiscal year period provided, however, that Contractor has obtained written
authorization prior to April 30th that fiscal year period under this Contract from the Department's Mental Health
Division Director before implementing any such budget changes.

Contractor will submit to County, for informational purposes upon request, its total Corporation budget including: all
program budgets, all revenue sources and projected revenue amounts, all cost allocations, and line item breakdown of
budget categories to include salary levels listed by job classification as well as detailing of operational and administrative
expenses by cost center and listing numbers of staff positions by job classification.

PROGRAM BUDGET CHANGES

GROSS OPERATIONAL BUDGET

Total Gross Allowable Program Costs

LESS PROJECTED NON-COUNTY PROGRAM REVENUES

CONTRACTOR BUDGET

NET ALLOWABLE TOTAL COSTS

Cost Reimbursement Categories

CHANGES IN COST CATEGORY AMOUNTS

Subject to the Total Payment Limit, and subject to State guidelines, each cost category Subtotal Amount set forth above:

Subject to the Contract Payment Limit and subject to State guidelines, Contractor may make changes in the total
amounts set forth above for the Total Gross Allowable Program Cost and the Total Projected Non-County Program
Revenue, provided, however, that Contractor has obtained written authorization prior to April 30th of each fiscal year
period under this Contract, from the Department’s Mental Health Director, or designee, in accordance with Paragraph G,
below, before implementing any such budget changes.

$ 231,750TOTAL CONTRACT PAYMENT LIMIT : 

May vary within each program by up to 15% without approval by County; and

Fiscal Year 2016— 2017       

Counseling Options and Parent Education, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)

Triple-P Parenting 

Program

Program Category: Outreach

Page 1 of 2

Initials: _________   ___________
Contractor     County Dept.



BUDGET OF ESTIMATED PROGRAM EXPENDITURES

Agency: 
Number  24-725   _

G. BUDGET REPORT

No later than April 30th of each fiscal year period under this Contract, Contractor shall deliver a written Budget Report to
the Department’s Mental Health Director, or designee stating whether or not the budgeted amounts set forth in this
Budget of Estimated Program Expenditures for the Total Gross Allowable Program Cost and the Total Projected Non-
County Program Revenue for the respective fiscal year period hereunder accurately reflect the actual cost for the Service
Program. If any of these program budget amounts needs to be changed, Contractor shall include in its Budget Report a
complete copy of the revised Budget of Estimated Program Expenditures, an explanation of the program budget and
revenue changes, and a request for prior written authorization to implement the changes in accordance with Paragraph
E, above, subject to Special Conditions Paragraph  2  (Cost Report).

Page 2 of 2

Initials: _________   ___________
Contractor     County Dept.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

Board of Directors  

Counseling Options and Parenting Education  

Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)  

Concord, California 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Counseling Options and 

Parenting Education Family Support Center, Inc., (C.O.P.E.) as of June 30, 2016, and the related 

statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related 

notes to the financial statements.  The prior year summarized comparative information has been 

derived from C.O.P.E.’s 2015 audited financial statements. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. Those standards require that we plan the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 

of the financial statements. 
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Board of Directors  
Counseling Options and Parenting Education  

Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)  

Concord, California 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the Counseling Options and Parenting Education Family Support Center, Inc. 

(C.O.P.E.) as of June 30, 2016, and changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other Matter 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 

whole. The schedule of functional expenses on page 15 is presented for purposes of additional 

analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility 

of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 

records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 

including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 

other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 

other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to 

the financial statements as a whole. 

 
Fechter & Company, 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

 

Sacramento, California 

March 2, 2017 



COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION

FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

(With Summarized Financial Information at June 30, 2015)

SUMMARIZED

TEMPORARILY TOTALS TOTALS

ASSETS UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED 2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 3,009$                    -$                        3,009$             -$                     

Accounts and grants receviable (Note 4) 119,566                   -                          119,566           104,658               

Inventory 1,866                      -                          1,866               2,462                   

Prepaid expenses 4,200                      -                          4,200               282                      

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 128,641                   -                          128,641           107,402               

DEPOSITS 500                         -                          500                  500                      

TOTAL ASSETS 129,141$                 -$                        129,141$         107,902$             

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Cash overdraft -$                        -$                        -$                 14,299$               

Accounts payable - vendors 49,214                    -                          49,214             41,094                 

Commercial Insurance-Financed 4,200                      4,200               -                       

Workers compensation clearing account 5,876                      5,876               2,823                   

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 59,290                    -                          59,290             58,216                 

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 69,851                    -                          69,851             49,686                 

Temporarily restricted (Note 8) -                          -                          -                   -                       

TOTAL NET ASSETS 69,851                    -                          69,851             49,686                 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 129,141$                 -$                        129,141$         107,902$             

  3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION

FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

SUMMARIZED

SUPPORT AND REVENUE TEMPORARILY TOTAL

UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED 2016 2015

 SUPPORT:

Individuals 2,532$                 -$                    2,532$             4,704$              

      Fundraising 6,319                   -                      6,319               10,978              

            TOTAL SUPPORT 8,851                   -                      8,851               15,682              

 REVENUE: 

 Government contracts -                       455,476              455,476           465,128            

 Sublease rental income -                       -                      -                   8,525                

 Fee for service 41,642                 -                      41,642             20,786              

 Interest income 18                        -                      18                    29                     

 Miscellaneous income 1,212                   -                      1,212               103                   

            TOTAL REVENUE 42,872                 455,476              498,348           494,571            

 Net Assets Released From Restrictions 455,476               (455,476)             -                   -                   

 TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 507,199               -                      507,199           510,253            

 EXPENSES 

 Program services 428,673               -                      428,673           451,909            

 Management and general 23,895                 -                      23,895             36,344              

 Fundraising 34,466                 -                      34,466             7,340                

 TOTAL EXPENSES 487,034               -                      487,034           495,593            

 CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 20,165                 -                      20,165             14,660              

 Net Assets, Beginning of year 49,686                 -                      49,686             35,026              

 Net Assets, End of year 69,851$               -                      69,851             49,686$            

TOTAL

  4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION

 FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

SUMMARIZED

TEMPORARILY TOTALS TOTALS

UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Changes in Net Assets 20,165$                  -$                      20,165$               14,660$                

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets  

to cash provided (used) by operating activities

CHANGES IN CURRENT ASSETS AND

CURRENT LIABILITIES

 (Increase) in accounts and grants receivable (14,908)                  -                        (14,908)               (13,577)                

(Increase) in prepaid expenses (3,918)                    -                        (3,918)                 6,314                   

 Decrease in inventory 526                         -                        526                      7,701                   

 Decrease in accounts payable 8,120                      -                        8,120                   (27,340)                

 Increase in workers compensation clearing account 3,053                      3,053                   2,823                   

 Increase in commercial insurance clearing account 4,200                      4,200                   

      (Decrease) in deferred revenue -                         -                        -                      (7,762)                  

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 17,238                    -                        17,238                 (17,181)                

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17,238                  -                      17,238               (17,181)               

CASH (OVERDRAFT) beginning of year (14,229)$                -$                      (14,229)$             2,952$                 

CASH end of year 3,009$                    -$                      3,009$                 (14,229)$              

  5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



 

COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION 

FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
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NOTE 1:  ORGANIZATION 

 

GENERAL 

Counseling Options and Parent Education Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.) (the 

Organization) is a non-profit corporation, established in September 2010, incorporated 

under the Nonprofit Benefit Corporate Law for public and charitable purposes.  The 

Organization’s mission is to prevent child abuse, provide comprehensive services to 

strengthen family relationships and bonds, empower parents, foster healthy relationships, 

and cultivate family units that encourage an optimal environment for the healthy growth 

and development of parents and children through parent education.  

 

PROGRAMS AND CONTRACTS 

The following are the Organization’s programs and related funding sources: 

Triple P Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) – A program that has demonstrated, 

through evidence, to prevent and treat behavioral, emotional and developmental problems 

in children by enhancing the knowledge, skills, and confidence of parents.  All of this is 

done through a strength-based and self-reflective approach that builds upon existing 

parenting strengths. The classes offered under this program are:  

 Group Triple P Classes: these are groups of no more than 12 parents that attend 

9-15 sessions and are supported with two phone counseling sessions at home. This 

program provides specialized strategies and education for parents of children in 

the age groups of 0-12. This service aids parents in  

 Group Teen Triple P Classes: these are groups of no more than 12 parents that 

attend 9-15 sessions and are supported with two phone counseling sessions at 

home. This program provides specialized strategies and education for parents of 

teens in the age groups of 13-17. 

  Triple P Positive Parenting Seminars: for groups of parents of children in 

elementary, middle and high schools that focus on positive ways to promote 

children’s development.  Each seminar is 1 ½ hours long and includes an 

informational presentation followed by a question and answer session.  

Participants will receive a tip-sheet with the information covered.  Our seminars 

focus on a variety of topics including: 1. Positive Parenting; 2. Raising confident, 

competent children; 3. Raising resilient children 4. Dealing with bullying.   

 

 

 

 



 

COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION 

FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
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NOTE 1:  ORGANIZATION (Continued) 

 

PROGRAMS AND CONTRACTS (Continued) 

 Triple P Primary Care Sessions (Coaching Sessions): Primary Care Triple P is 

a brief targeted intervention in a one-to-one format that assists parents to develop 

parenting plans to manage behavioral issues (e.g. tantrums, fighting, going 

shopping) and skill development issues (e.g. eating independently, toilet training, 

staying in bed at night). Practitioners provide 3-4 sessions over a period of 4-6 

weeks. Sessions can be done in a group or one-on-one. 

 

 Pathways Triple P: Pathways Triple P has been developed as an intensive 

intervention program for parents who have difficulty regulating their emotions and 

as a result are considered at risk of physically or emotionally harming their 

children. 

 

 Enhanced Triple P Classes: Parents who benefit from Enhanced Triple P are 

those who deal with family issues such as stress, poor coping, partner conflict or 

mental health issues. The program addresses family factors that may impact upon, 

and complicate the task of parenting (e.g., parental mood, partner conflict). 

 

 Stepping Stones Triple P Individual and Group classes for parents of special 

needs children: Group Stepping Stones Triple P has been developed for parents 

of children with cognitive, physical, and/or developmental challenges that have 

behavior difficulties.  

 

 Parenting Classes for Parents of Truant Children and Teens: This program is 

tailored for parents of teens who are consistently truant in their perspective 

schools. Both parents and teens are taught the tools necessary to address and 

resolve the issues surrounding the teen’s school attendance. This program teaches 

parents how to identify truancy, the causes of teen truancy, how to work towards a 

solution, and improve communication with their teen to ensure regular school 

attendance. Small workshops are held in therapeutic settings. 

 
Family Transitions Triple P: This program focuses on families going through a 

separation or divorce, and are experiencing unresolved conflicts or have difficulty 

communicating effectively. The course is designed to assist parents in building 

and maintaining a healthy co-parenting relationship, while providing strategies to 

manage conflicts and stressful situations.                     



 

COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION 

FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
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NOTE 1:  ORGANIZATION (Continued) 

 

PROGRAMS AND CONTRACTS (Continued) 

The Triple P program is funded through: 

 

 A contract agreement between the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) 

Prevention and Early Intervention Services and the Contra Costa County Health 

Services-Behavioral Health Services/Mental Health (the County) with a 

subcontract provision for the Organization to administer the Triple P program. 

Under the terms of the agreement, the County paid the Organization an amount not 

to exceed $225,000 for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.   

 

 A standard agreement with the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families 

Commission under a contract for an amount not to exceed $142,600 from 

July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016. 

 

Supporting Fatherhood Classes (SFI) – A program that encourages the father’s active 

involvement in their children’s lives.  SFI examines five areas of growth, individual 

adjustment, couple relationship, skills and competence as a parent, impact of the larger 

community, and generational models.  SFI is funded through: 

 

 A standard agreement with the Contra Costa Employment and Human Services 

under a contract for an amount not to exceed $82,746 from July 1, 2015, through 

June 30, 2016. 

The following programs are funded by fee for service arrangements with the 

Organization’s clients.   

 Individual Psychotherapy:  Working one-on-one, with families or in group with 

a therapist on issues such as depression, anxiety, stress, post-traumatic stress 

disorder, anger management, life transitions, substance abuse, single or co-

parenting, divorce mediation and other personal or emotional issues to help you 

move forward in life and reach your goals. Our therapists are from diverse 

backgrounds, orientations and culturally sensitive.  Spanish, English, Arabic and 

Farsi languages available. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 1:  ORGANIZATION (Continued) 

 

PROGRAMS AND CONTRACTS (Continued) 

 Anti-Bullying Program: School Staff/Teacher support in identifying bullying 

behavior, providing evidence-based methods to intervene and address the issue, 

and creating safe and supportive classroom/school environments. $250.00.  Parent 

workshops teach strategies and support parents of children involved in any aspect 

of bullying or in need of general information. Cost TBA. 

 Anger Management: Twenty-six-week anger management for adults or teens: 

Recognize and normalize anger, gain better understanding and self-control. Learn 

different ways to manage stress and improve emotional intelligence and 

communication. Registration and book fee:  $55.00; additionally, Group:  

$25/session, or Individual sessions:  $60.00/session. 

 Teen Truancy: This course is delivered over nine weeks for parents of truant 

children and teens who are truant to address these numerous issues. The class 

addresses the factors contributing to truancy, the consequences, and changes to be 

made. 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Basis of Accounting and Reporting – The Organization’s accounting records are 

maintained on the accrual basis of accounting generally accepted in the United States of 

America.   

Use of Estimates – In preparing financial statements in conformity with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles, management must make estimates based on future 

events that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; the disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements; and revenues and 

expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – The Organization’s cash and cash equivalents balance 

consists of amounts held in checking and savings accounts in large financial institutions 

and investments maturing in less than 90 days. 
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NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments – Financial instruments consist of financial assets and 

financial liabilities.  The Organization’s financial assets are cash and cash equivalents and 

accounts receivable.  The Organization’s financial liabilities are accounts payable and 

deferred revenue.   

 

None of the financial instruments are held for trading. The fair value of these financial 

instruments approximate the carrying amounts because the value of the short maturity of 

these instruments.  The fair value estimates have not been recorded or reported for 

financial statement purposes because of the short term maturity of these financial 

instruments and because the financial instruments are not held for trading. 

 
Prepaid Expenses – Prepaid expenses are amortized over the period of future benefit. 

 

Furniture and Equipment – Furniture and equipment are stated at cost.  Expenditures for 

furniture and equipment purchases over $1,500 are capitalized and depreciated over five 

to ten years using the straight-line method.  When assets are retired or sold, the related 

cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and gain or loss arising 

from such disposition is included as income or expense.  Expenditures for repairs and 

maintenance are charged to expenses as incurred.  There were no assets capitalized during 

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Donated Materials and Services – Donated materials are recorded at their fair value on the 

date of donation.  Donated services by individuals providing administration services are 

not recorded as donated services as there are no special skills required for these services. 

 

Deposits – Deposits consist of security deposit amounts held with a leasing company and 

are recorded at the time the lease agreement was signed.   

 

Functional Allocation of Expenses – Costs of providing the programs, administrative 

duties, and fundraising activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 

accompanying statement of functional expenses.  Certain indirect costs have been 

allocated directly to programs and administration based upon ratios determined by 

management.  These costs primarily include salaries, fringe benefits, occupancy, and other 

expenses. 

 

Income Taxes   

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 

Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.  There 

was no taxable unrelated business income during the year ended June 30, 2016. 
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NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

Income Taxes – (Continued) 

The Organization has implemented the accounting requirements associated with 

uncertainty in income taxes.  The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued guidance 

that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an 

Organization’s financial statements.  Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be 

recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the positions will be 

sustained upon examination by the tax authorities.   

 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization has no uncertain tax positions that 

qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.  The Organization’s 

tax years for 2012 through 2015 remain open and could be subject to examination by the 

federal tax jurisdiction.  For the state tax jurisdiction, the tax years 2012 through 2015 

remain open and could be subject to examination. There was no taxable unrelated business 

income during 2016. 

 

Contributions and Grant Revenue – The Organization receives contributions and grants 

from corporations, foundations, charitable organizations and individuals.  Contributions 

and grants are presented in accordance with presented Financial Accounting Standards 

Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 958, Not-For-Profit 

Entities. ASC 958, 605 Not-For-Profit Entities-Revenue Recognition.  

 
The provisions of ASC 958, 605 require the Organization to recognize contributions and 

grants as either temporarily or permanently restricted support, if they are received with 

donor stipulations that limit the use of the contribution or grant.   

 

When a temporary restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the 

purpose of the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified 

as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released 

from restrictions. 

 

All other contributions are recognized upon receipt.  Grant amounts received but not yet 

earned are reported as deferred revenue. 
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NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

Financial Statement Presentation –The Organization’s financial statements are presented 

in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards 

Codification (ASC) Topic 958, Not-For-Profit Entities. Under FASB ASC Topic 958, the 

Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and 

activities according to three classes of net assets based upon the existence or absence of 

donor imposed restrictions, as follows: 

 

Unrestricted Net Assets – represent resources over which the Board of Directors has 

discretionary control and that are neither permanently restricted nor temporarily restricted 

by donor-imposed stipulations. 

 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets – represent resources whose use by the Organization is 

limited by donor imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be 

fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations.  

 
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose is accomplished, 

temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.  There were no 

temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2016. 

 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets – represent resources whose use by the Organization is 

limited by donor imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be 

fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Organization.  The Organization has no 

permanently restricted net assets. 

 

Generally, the donor of these assets permits the recipient organization unrestrictive use of 

earnings from these assets to support the general operations of the recipient organization.  

There were no permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2016. 
 

Summarized Financial Information for 2015 – The financial information for the year 

ended June 30, 2015, was presented for comparative purposes, and is not intended to be a 

complete financial statement presentation.  

 

NOTE 3:  CONCENTRATION OF RISK   

 

Cash Deposits In Excess Of Federal Limits 

The financial instruments, which potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of 

credit risk, consist principally of cash and temporary cash investments.   
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NOTE 3:  CONCENTRATION OF RISK  (Continued) 

 

Cash Deposits In Excess Of Federal Limits 

The Organization maintains their operating cash accounts in one financial institution.  The 

cash deposits maintained at the financial institution is insured by the Federal Deposit 

Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. The operating cash account balance was 

below the federally insured limit at June 30, 2016.   

 

Government Contracts 

The Organization receives significant amounts of revenue from governmental contracts.  

Should funding from these grants be changed due to a change in budgeting or due to 

cutbacks, such reduction in funding might have an adverse effect on the Organization’s 

programs and activities. 

 

 

NOTE 4:  ACCOUNTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE 

 

Accounts and grants receivable at June 30, 2016, represent funds earned but not yet 

received from current contracts and grants as follows: 
 

Grantors  

CC First 5 Children and Families Commission   $    22,070 

CCC Behavior Health Services/Mental         52,626 

Promoting Safe and Stable Families        44,737 

Other             133 

  

     Total  $   119,566 

 

The Organization does not believe that an allowance for doubtful accounts is required for       

any of the accounts and grants receivable as of June 30, 2016. 

 

NOTE 5: CREDIT CARDS 

 

The Organization used credit cards to facilitate purchases of supplies and other items 

used in operations. A description of the credit cards is as follows: 

 A credit card which has a revolving credit limit of $17,000.  The annual interest 

rate is 14.24%.  There is a balance outstanding at June 30, 2016, of $1,556 which 

is included in accounts payable. 

 

 A credit card which has a credit limit of $11,000.  The annual interest rates on the 

credit limit is 23.15%.  There is a balance outstanding on the credit limit at 

June 30, 2016, of $2,492 which is included in accounts payable. 
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NOTE 6:  COMMITMENTS 

 

The Organization entered into a new lease agreement in the same office building to lease 

office space in Concord, California. The Organization is using the additional, unfurnished 

space for storage.  The terms of the office lease agreement began December 31, 2013, and 

end on June 30, 2016.  The monthly rent of $1,550 is due on the first day of each month 

starting December 31, 2013, through June 30, 2016.  The monthly rent increases to $1,612 

through the remainder of the lease term. 

 

The Organization entered into a five year operating lease agreement to lease a copy 

machine.  The lease agreement requires minimum lease payments of $140 per month. 

 

Lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2016, was $1,680. 

 

Minimum future lease and rent payments are as follows: 

 

Year ended June 30,   Amount 

2017  $       1,680 

2018           1,680 

2019  1,680 
2020  1,680 
2021  1,680 

Totals  $      8,400 

 

NOTE 7:  CONTINGENCIES 
 

Grant awards require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the instruments of 

the grant.  Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of the funds to the 

grantors.  The Organization deems this contingency remote since, by accepting the grants 

and their terms, it has accommodated the objectives of the provisions of the grant.  

Management is of the opinion that the Organization has complied with the terms of all 

grants. 

 

NOTE 8:  EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 

The Organization has reviewed the results of operations for the period of time from its 

year end June 30, 2016, through March 2, 2017, the date which the financial statements 

were available to be issued.  
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION

FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

 

SUMMARIZED

MANAGEMENT/ TOTALS TOTALS

PROGRAM GENERAL FUNDRAISING 2016 2015

PERSONNEL 

Salaries 276,319$           10,049$                  30,702$               317,070$        267,262$           

Payroll taxes 33,360               804                         3,704                   37,868            27,249               

Workers compensation 3,884                 89                           -                       3,973              3,763                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL 313,563             10,942                    34,406                 358,911          298,274             

OPERATING 

Staff mileage expense 1,331                 -                         -                       1,331              841                    

Facility costs 8,204                 -                         -                       8,204              255                    

Insurance 3,827                 2,286                      -                       6,113              -                     

Food and incentives 14,616               -                         -                       14,616            11,606               

Program training 35,001               -                         -                       35,001            40,215               

Supplies 28,336               62                           -                       28,398            31,179               

Occupancy 13,837               1,851                      -                       15,688            16,720               

Telephone 3,260                 1,572                      -                       4,832              4,833                 

Office Expense 2,600                 6,106                      -                       8,706              3,997                 

Postage 62                      5                             -                       67                   221                    

Printing (310)                   -                         -                       (310)                190                    

Dues, fees and subscriptions 346                    167                         -                       513                 570                    

Equipment lease 1,816                 747                         -                       2,563              332                    

Board expenses 154                    130                         -                       284                 133                    

Fundraising expense -                     -                         60                        60                   4,087                 

Fiscal fees -                     -                         -                       -                  27,313               

Indirect expense: outreach 638                    20                           -                       658                 -                     

   Miscellaneous 1,392                 7                             -                       1,399              2,047                 

TOTAL EXPENSES 428,673$           23,895$                  34,466$               487,034$        442,813$           

  15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

 

Board of Directors  
Counseling Options and Parenting Education  

Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)  

Concord, California 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the Counseling Options and Parenting Education Family 

Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.) (the Organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and 

have issued our report thereon dated March 2, 2017.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 

financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 

the United States. 
 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Organization’s internal control over 

financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 

opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not 

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial 

reporting. 

 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 

misstatements on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of 

control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Organization’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, 

process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 

such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Organization’s financial 

statements, that is more than inconsequential, will not be prevented or detected by the Organization’s 

internal control. 

 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that 

results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will 

not be prevented or detected by the Organization’s internal control. 
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Board of Directors  

Counseling Options and Parenting Education  

Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)  

Concord, California 

 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 

the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal 

control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  We did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 

defined above. 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are 

free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 

material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion 

on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not 

express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.   

 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, 

audit committee, and grant awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 

should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
Fechter & Company, 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

 

Sacramento, California 

March 2, 2017 
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Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) 

Program and Fiscal Review 

 

I. Date of On-site Review:  May 30, 2017  
Date of Exit Meeting:  September 18, 2017 
 

II. Review Team:  Stephanie Chenard and Gerold Loenicker 
 

III. Name of Program:   Lincoln  
51 Marina Blvd, Suite D  
Pittsburg, CA 94565   

 
IV. Program Description.  Lincoln was founded in 1883 as the region's first 

volunteer-run, non-sectarian, and fully integrated orphanage.  As times and 
community needs evolved, Lincoln's commitment to vulnerable children remained 
strong. In 1951, Lincoln began serving abused, neglected and emotionally 
challenged children. Today, Lincoln has a continuum of programs to serve 
challenged children and families throughout the Bay Area. Their community 
based services include early intervention programs in several Bay Area school 
districts aimed at stopping the cycle of violence, abuse and mental health 
problems for at-risk children and families. 
 
Lincoln works with Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) to provide 
a Full Service Partnership Program for youth throughout the County.  As part of 
the Full Service Partnership, Lincoln utilizes the evidence based practice of 
Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT).  This is a comprehensive and multi-
systemic family-based outpatient therapeutic intervention for youth and 
adolescents with co-occurring substance use and mental health disorders or who 
may be at high risk for continued substance abuse and other problem behaviors, 
such as conduct disorder and delinquency.  The age range of the consumers 
they serve is 11-19 (up until the consumer’s 20th birthday).  Working with the 
youth and their families, MDFT helps youth develop more effective coping and 
problem solving skills for better decision making, and helps the family improve 
interpersonal functioning as a protective factor against substance abuse and 
related problems.  Services are delivered over 4 to 6 months with weekly or 
twice-weekly, face-to-face contact, either in the home, the community or in the 
clinic.  After care services are additionally available for up to three months after 
the conclusion of the program. 
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V. Purpose of Review. Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is 
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health 
Services Act.  Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was 
conducted of the above program.  The results of this review are contained herein, 
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided, 
b) more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and 
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.  
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this 
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this 
program/plan element in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the 
future. 
 

VI. Summary of Findings. 
 

Topic Met 
Standard 

Notes 

1. Deliver services according to the 
values of the MHSA 

Met Consumers and family 
members indicate the 
program meets the values 
of MHSA 

2. Serve the agreed upon target 
population. 

Met Program only serves 
clients that meet criteria 
for the County’s children’s 
full service partnership 
admission criteria. 

3. Provide the services for which 
funding was allocated. 

Met MHSA only funds services 
consistent with the Three 
Year Plan 

4. Meet the needs of the community 
and/or population. 

Met Services are consistent 
with the Three Year Plan 

5. Serve the number of individuals 
that have been agreed upon.   

Met Target service numbers 
are reached. 

6. Achieve the outcomes that have 
been agreed upon.  

Met Program meets its 
outcomes  

7. Quality Assurance Partially 
Met 

Utilization review indicated 
program meets most 
quality assurance 
standards 

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality 
of protected health information.  

Met The program is HIPAA 
compliant 
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9. Staffing sufficient for the program Met Staffing level supports 
targeted service numbers. 

10. Annual independent fiscal audit Met No material or significant 
weaknesses were noted.  

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to 
deliver and sustain the services 

Met Lincoln has significant net 
assets to withstand 
significant revenue 
interruptions.  

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with 
generally accepted accounting 
principles  

Met Staff is well qualified and 
program has good internal 
controls and monthly 
review processes.   

13. Documentation sufficient to 
support invoices 

Met Organization provided 
documentation that 
reconciles to monthly 
invoices. 

14. Documentation sufficient to 
support allowable expenditures 

Met Method of accounting for 
personnel time and 
operating costs appear to 
be supported. 

15. Documentation sufficient to 
support expenditures invoiced in 
appropriate fiscal year 

Met No billings noted for 
previous fiscal year 
expenses and 
documentation supports 
that funds are invoiced in 
the appropriate fiscal year. 

16. Administrative costs sufficiently 
justified and appropriate to the 
total cost of the program 

Met Contract budget reflects 
indirect rate of 16.4%. 

17. Insurance policies sufficient to 
comply with contract 

Met Necessary insurance is in 
place 

18.  Effective communication between 
contract manager and contractor 

Met The County and program 
meet regularly. 

 
 

VII. Review Results. The review covered the following areas: 
 

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act 
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).  
Does the program/plan element collaborate with the community, provide an 
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integrated service experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be 
culturally competent, and be client and family driven. 
Method.  Consumer, family member, and service provider interviews and 
consumer surveys. 
Discussion.  The results of 11 consumer surveys were received.  The majority of 
the survey responses were consistent with consumer interviews; namely, they 
show a positive evaluation of the program; and that the program adheres to 
MHSA values. 
 

Questions  Responses: n=11 

Please indicate how strongly you 
agree or disagree with the 
following statements regarding 
persons who work with you: 

Strongly 
Agree  

4 

Agree 

 

3 

Disagree 

 

2 

Strongly 
Disagree 

1 

I don’t 
know 

n/a 

1. Help me improve my health and 
wellness. 

Average score: 3.28 (n=11) 

2. Allow me to decide what my own 
strengths and needs   

Average score: 3.40 (n=10) 

3. Work with me to determine the 
services that are most helpful 

Average score: 3.50 (n=10) 

4. Provide services that are sensitive 
to my cultural background. 

Average score: 3.50 (n=10) 

5. Provide services that are in my 
preferred language 

Average score: 3.55 (n=11) 

6. Help me in getting needed health, 
employment, education and other 
benefits and services.  

Average score: 3.37 (n=11) 

7. Are open to my opinions as to 
how services should be provided 

Average score: 3.55 (n=11) 

8. What does this program do well? 
 

• Helped with school 
• Responds quickly to the needs of the child 

and the family as a whole. Shows 
compassion and respect for each family 
members position. Willing to travel for the 
needs of the family. 

• Being able to empathize and relate to 
personal life and relationships. Also 
appointments are well scheduled. 

• Acts like it really cares. Provides in depth 
counseling. 



5 
 

• This program helps me communicate with 
my family in a healthy manner. 

• I like being able to talk about my problems 
and working on how to solve them. 

9. What does this program need to 
improve upon? 

• Help with housing 
• “My mom needs therapy.” 

10. What needed services and 
supports are missing? 

• Housing 

11.  How important is this program in 
helping you improve your health 
and wellness, live a self-directed 
life, and reach your full potential? 

Very 
Important 

4 

Important 

 

3 

Somewhat 
Important 

2 

Not 
Important 

1 

Average score: 3.64 (n=11) 

12. Any additional comments? • I really appreciate the help 

 

Consumer Interview 
Due to the nature of the services being delivered almost exclusively in the field, 
and because of the time commitments of the families and consumers, we were 
only able to meet with one consumer for a face-to-face interview.  The consumer 
had been referred to the program through juvenile probation and had just finished 
the full six month program.  She had tried several different programs before 
Lincoln’s MDFT program, but none of the previous programs were a good fit for 
her or her family’s needs.   
 
Overall, the consumer was very appreciative of the services provided by Lincoln.  
She felt that there was strong cultural grounding in the treatment plan, and that 
input from her and her family was solicited and valued as part of the treatment 
plan, empowering her to put in greater effort, and gaining confidence.  During the 
interview, some of the other things specifically identified as positives of the 
program were:   
• The family component was key to success – it helped repair and strengthen 

family relationships, and was useful in helping to find common ground with 
family members. 

• The skills and coping activities learned helped to moderate emotions and 
control anger. 

• Flexibility – able to provide services in the community. 
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These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values.  However, the 
consumer also identified some areas of improvement.  She indicated that she felt 
the program could benefit from more therapist availability.  She also indicated 
that she was interested in participating in some kind of mentorship program as 
part of the next steps in her recovery.  Determining linkages to organizations that 
specialize in peer volunteer mentoring may be an opportunity for Lincoln to 
explore. 
 
Staff Interview: 
Overall, five individual program staff were interviewed in two sessions:  
a program management session and a line staff group interview (two clinicians 
and a family advocate).  Staff shared that the program receives their referrals 
from several sources, primarily from juvenile probation, county children’s clinics, 
or Seneca’s START program (as a next step in treatment). Lincoln’s MDFT team 
provides care to the child and whole family, according to the MDFT evidence-
based model, which focuses on larger goals for the program, then smaller goals 
for each session.  This is achieved through multiple sessions:  individual 
child/consumer sessions, parenting sessions, and whole family sessions.  The 
MDFT uses a “parents are the medicine” philosophy.  Staff reported that 
“collateral support” can be providing support to youth in court or in schools, and 
providing support to the family to build and empower them.  According to 
program staff, one of the principal strengths of the program is the flexibility the 
model allows, especially for the family advocate, who can be very responsive to 
the needs of the family.  Program management indicated that the model can be 
used in a cross-over situation with youth who are receiving Educationally Related 
Mental Health Services (ERMHS) as long as MDFT has the lead in treatment, 
and reported that this cross-over appears to be working well, so far. 
 
During the interview, staff also shared hindrances they faced in providing 
services to the youth, such as youth aging out of the system of care while still in 
the program.  Turning 18 presents challenges working with parents or the foster 
care system.  Staff also faced difficulty coordinating aftercare, and linking the 
youth to other county services.  However, staff did indicate that overall they felt 
like they were meeting the needs of their clients, and appreciated the flexibility to 
tailor treatment to their client’s cultural background. 
 
Results.  Interviews with program participants and service providers as well as 
program participant survey results all support that Lincoln delivers services in 
accordance with the values of MHSA. 
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2. Serve the agreed upon target population.  For Community Services and 
Supports, does the program serve children or youth with a serious emotional 
disturbance.  Does the program serve the agreed upon target population (such 
as age group, underserved community).  
Method.  Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a 
random sampling of client charts or case files. 
Discussion.  The Lincoln MDFT Full Service Partnership program accepts 
referrals from the County, often through the juvenile probation department, 
clinics, and other full-service partnership providers.  The MHSA chart review 
conducted by the MHSA Program and Fiscal Review team confirms the agreed 
upon target population for full service partnerships.  
 
Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services also performs a utilization review on all 
programs which bill Medi-Cal, including Lincoln. On July 6, 2016 a Level Two 
Centralized Utilization Chart Review was conducted. For all of the charts 
reviewed*, clients met medical necessity for specialty mental health services as 
specified in the Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) Section 5600.3(a).   
 
*(Please see longer discussion about this review in Section 7 below.)  
 
Results.  The program serves the agreed upon population. 
 

3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated.  Does the program 
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon. 
Method.  Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular 
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service 
provider interviews.  
Discussion.  Monthly service summaries and 931 and 864 Reports from 
CCBHS’s billing system show that the Lincoln’s Full Service Partnership program 
is providing the number and type of services that have been agreed upon. 
Services include Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT) services, outreach 
and engagement, case management, outpatient mental health services, crisis 
intervention, and flexible funds.  Both program staff and participants indicated 
services are available on a 24-7 basis via an after-hours crisis phone line.   
Results.  The program provides the services for which funding was allocated. 
 

4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population.  Is the program meeting 
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed.  Has the 
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community 
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program planning process.  Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year 
Program and Expenditure Plan.   
Method.  Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence 
to the Community Program Planning Process.  Match the service work plan or 
program description with the Three Year Plan.  Compare with consumer/family 
member and service provider interviews.  Review client surveys. 
Discussion. The Full Service Partnership programs were included in the original 
Community Services and Supports plan that was approved in May 2006 and 
included in subsequent plan updates. The program has been authorized by the 
Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current MHSA Three-Year 
Program and Expenditure Plan. Interviews with service providers and program 
participants support the notion that the program meets its goals and the needs of 
the community it serves. 
Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population for 
which they are designated. 
 

5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon.  Has the 
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program 
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the 
last three years. 
Method.  Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly 
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets  
and case files. 
Discussion.  Upon initial award of the children’s FSP contract, Lincoln’s MDFT 
target enrollment number was 50 clients. The program launched in the 2013, and 
at the end of their first full fiscal year of operation (13/14FY) they were reporting 
serving 57 clients -- well within their target.  They have continued to meet their 
target numbers. 
Results.  The program serves the number of people that have been agreed 
upon. 
 

6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon.  Is the program meeting 
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending. 
Method.  Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes 
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of 
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts.  Outcome 
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric 
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of 
life, and cost effectiveness.  Analyze the level of success by the context, as 
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group, 
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year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a 
generally accepted standard. 
Discussion.  Lincoln’s MDFT program started during FY 13/14, and started 
reporting on early outcomes for that year.  The program has a few well-defined 
primary program objectives as part of the service work plan: reduction in 
substance use or maintained abstinence, reduction in delinquency or maintained 
positive functioning, and demonstrated improvement in functioning. The program 
has provided an annual report summarizing their progress towards meeting their 
program outcomes.   
Results.  Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives.  
 

7. Quality Assurance.  How does the program assure quality of service provision. 
Method.  Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization 
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of 
quality of service review. 
Discussion.  CCBHS did not receive any grievances associated with Lincoln’s 
MDFT Full Service Partnership program. The program has an internal grievance 
procedure in place and clients receive information on how to file complaints as 
part of the agency’s Notice of Privacy Practices. The program undergoes regular 
Level 1 and Level 2 utilization reviews conducted by CCBHS’s utilization review 
teams to ensure that program services and documentation meet regulatory 
standards. Level 1 and Level 2 utilization review reports indicate that Lincoln 
generally meets documentation and quality standards.   
 
On July 6, 2016, a Level Two Centralized Utilization Chart Review and a 
Focused Review was conducted by CCBHS.  The results show that charts 
generally met documentation standards, with a few compliance issues, to include 
incomplete or incorrectly completed forms.  There were several other findings 
related to disallowances for incomplete and late assessments, notes not being 
completed in a timely manner, and incorrectly billed activities.  Notably, however, 
was a larger disallowance for two of the five charts reviewed for not meeting 
service necessity for MDFT.  Specifically, these two clients did not document a 
co-occurring substance abuse disorder diagnosis.  While the clients seemed to 
have met medical necessity for a full service partnership, without documentation 
of substance use, they did not qualify for MDFT under the Service Work Plan that 
Utilization Review (UR) staff used as a guideline for allowable services.  
Utilization Review staff provided feedback around standardized notes, defining 
allowable billable services, and timeliness of completing notes.   
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Lincoln submitted an appeal on July 27, 2016 for several of the disallowances, 
with significant discussion on the substance use criteria.  In their appeal, Lincoln 
noted that an agreement was arrived at between the program and the CCBHS 
Adult Program Chief and Children Program Chief that MDFT would no longer 
need to require a co-occurring substance use disorder diagnosis to be treated, in 
order to better serve the needs of the community.  While this verbal arrangement 
had clearly been made, the Service Work Plan with the County had not been 
updated to reflect this change.  The County denied their appeal, citing that they 
could only go by the most current Service Work Plan at the time of the review.  In 
the same appeal document, Lincoln also submitted a plan of correction for the 
remaining findings.  At the time of this MHSA program review, Lincoln indicated 
that the Service Work Plan had been updated to reflect this change in criteria and 
services.   
 
Results.  The program has a quality assurance process in place.  However, it is 
recommended that Lincoln continue to work with the County to ensure that any 
change in services is updated in the Service Work Plan on file in a timely fashion 
to avoid any future disallowances.  It is further recommended that the program 
continue to provide training to their clinical staff on consistent clinical 
documentation. 
 

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information.  What 
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the 
protocol.   
Method.  Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with 
the observed implementation of the program/plan element’s implementation of a 
protocol for safeguarding protected patient health information. 
Discussion.  Lincoln has written policies and provides staff training on HIPAA 
requirements and safeguarding of patient information. Client charts are kept in 
locked file cabinets, behind a locked door and comply with HIPAA standards. 
Clients and program participants are informed about their privacy rights and rules 
of confidentiality. 
Results. The program complies with HIPAA requirements.    
 

9. Staffing sufficient for the program.  Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver 
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous 
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support. 
Method.  Match history of program response with organization chart, staff 
interviews and duty statements. 
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Discussion.  At the time of the site visit, Lincoln indicated that there had been 
some recent turnover and they had two clinician vacancies on the MDFT team.  
However, the nature of the team approach of MDFT evidence-based treatment 
and program staff training allows Lincoln to provide the services outlined in the 
Service Work Plan with current staffing, and they seemed to be on track to hit 
their target number of clients served.  The experience level of the treatment team 
varied from a few years of experience in mental health to this being their first 
position in mental health.  Lincoln has a robust internal training program aimed at 
identifying and addressing a variety of mental health issues in their training 
process.  However, one area of opportunity that staff indicated they would like to 
receive more training in was on trauma-specific treatment.   
Results.  Sufficient staffing is in place to serve the number of clients outlined in 
the most recent Service Work Plan.   
 

10. Annual independent fiscal audit.  Did the organization have an annual 
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any 
findings.  
Method.  Obtain and review audited financial statements.  If applicable, discuss 
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager. 
Discussion.  Lincoln is a not-for-profit agency impacts the lives of children and 
families through evolving programs. The organization has a total operating 
budget of $19 million and provides services for outreach and engagement, case 
management, outpatient mental health and crisis intervention. Today, Lincoln 
provides preventive, individualized, and comprehensive support services with a 
focus on three core areas that disrupt cycles of poverty and trauma. These areas 
are education – addressing obstacles that impact academic attendance and 
achievement; family – strengthening stability and creating permanence; and well-
being- improving resiliency and wellness. 
Results.  Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2013-14, 14-15 and 15-16 
were provided and reviewed.  No material or significant findings were noted.   
 

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services.  Does 
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient 
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program.   
Method.  Review audited financial statements and Board of Directors meeting 
minutes.  Interview fiscal manager of program. 
Discussion. The Controller indicated that current expenses are exceeding 
revenue due to staffing insufficiency, and when operating with a deficit, program 
utilizes investments to stay afloat. The program has hired new staff and expects 
to see changes this fiscal year that promotes growth in revenue. The outstanding 
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balance for line of credit significantly increased for FY 15-16 but has decreased 
for FY 16-17. There were no issues identified in the Board of Directors minutes 
related to the program or organization’s fiscal position, indicating their operating 
cash balance is sufficient and that they have a daily process to track cash flows.  
Results.  Fiscal resources are currently sufficient to deliver and sustain services.   
  

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal 
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Method.  Interview with fiscal manager. 
Discussion.  The Controller has been with Lincoln for seven years, appears well 
qualified, and described established protocols that are in place to enable a check 
and balance system to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.   
Results.  Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
  

13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices.  Do the organization’s financial 
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no 
duplicate billing. 
Method.  Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices.  Interview fiscal 
manager of program. 
Discussion.  A randomly selected invoice for each of the last three years was 
matched with supporting documentation provided by the agency.  A clear and 
accurate connection was established between documented hours worked and 
submitted invoices.   A clear and accurate connection was established between 
documented hours/types of mental health services and submitted invoices.   
Lincoln’s FSP program is a specialty mental health service contract with CCBHS 
that is based upon established rates and billed monthly according to the 
documented level of service provided.   
Results.  Uses established software program with appropriate supporting 
documentation protocol 
  

14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures.  Does 
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and 
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and 
operating expenditures charged to the program. 
Method.  Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for 
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and 
operating expenditures invoiced to the county. 
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Discussion.  Line item personnel and operating costs were reviewed for 
appropriateness.  All line items submitted were consistent with line items that are 
appropriate to support the service delivery.   
Results.  Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time and operating 
costs appear to be justified and documented.   
  

15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate 
fiscal year.  Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support 
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which 
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows). 
Method.  Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.  
Interview fiscal manager of program. 
Discussion.  Total contract billing was within contract limits, with no billing by 
this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year.   
Results.  Lincoln appears to be implementing an appropriate year end closing 
system with reporting signed by the CFO.   
  

16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost 
of the program.  Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs 
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program. 
Method.  Review methodology and statistics used to allocate 
administrative/indirect costs.  Interview fiscal manager of program. 
Discussion.  Lincoln produced its methodology that justifies the 16.4% indirect 
rate charged to the contract. The controller indicated indirect costs are allocated 
to the different programs based on actual personnel hours of each program.   
Results.  At 16.4% the indirect rate appears reasonable.   
 

17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract.  Does the organization 
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the 
contract. 
Method.  Review insurance policies. 
Discussion. The program provided commercial general liability insurance, 
automobile liability, umbrella liability, professional liability and directors and 
officers liability policies that were in effect at the time of the site visit.  
Results. The program complies with contract insurance requirements. 
 

18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor.  Do 
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly 
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise. 
Method.  Interview contract manager and contractor staff. 
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Discussion.  To date contract management duties have been centralized within 
CCBHS’s children’s system.  Moreover, the contract manager and Children’s 
Chief meet with the program for regular monthly meetings.  
Results.  The program has historically had good communication with the 
contract manager and is receptive to feedback and willing to address concerns 
that may arise. 
 
 

VIII. Summary of Results. 
 
Lincoln is committed to stabilizing youth with co-occurring substance use and 
mental health disorders or who may be at high risk for continued substance 
abuse and other problem behaviors, such as conduct disorder and delinquency.  
Their services seek to help youth develop more effective coping and problem 
solving skills for better decision making, and help the family improve 
interpersonal functioning as a protective factor.  The Lincoln Full Service 
Partnership adheres to the values of MHSA and serves their target population.  
The program is meeting the outcomes detailed in their contract.  Lincoln appears 
to be a financially sound organization that follows generally accepted accounting 
principles, and maintains documentation that supports agreed upon service 
expenditures.  
 
 

IX. Findings for Further Attention. 
 

• It is recommended that Lincoln continue to work with the County to ensure 
that any change in services is updated in the Service Work Plan on file in 
a timely fashion to avoid any future disallowances. 
 

• The program should continue to provide training to their clinical staff on  
 

• consistent clinical documentation. 
 

X. Next Review Date.   May 2020 
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XI. Appendices. 

Appendix A – Program MDFT Fidelity & Outcomes Report 

Appendix B – Program Description/Service Work Plan     

Appendix C – Service Provider Budget  

Appendix D – Yearly External Fiscal Audit  

Appendix E – Organization Chart 

XII. Working Documents that Support Findings. 

Consumer Listing 

Consumer, Family Member Surveys 

Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews 

County MHSA Monthly Financial Report  

County Utilization Review Report 

Progress Reports, Outcomes 

Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation  

Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan  

Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes  

Insurance Policies  

MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s) 
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Program MDFT Fidelity & Outcomes Report 

  



 

 

 
MDFT Fidelity & Outcomes Report  

 

Reporting Period:  From:  7/1/2016  To:  6/30/2017 

Program Name - 
Agency Name:  

Lincoln MDFT Program Contra Costa County - Lincoln Child 
Center ( Standard Dose ) 

Date of Report:  08/11/2017 
 

 
 

Service Delivery Report 

1. Percentage of therapy sessions held in clinic:  11.64% 

2. Average case duration (in months):  5.32 

3. Total number of cases served during reporting period:  63 

4. Total number of cases closed during reporting period:  49 

5. 
Percentage of cases closed that completed at least 8 sessions 
(Benchmark 85% or higher):  

95.92% 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Percent Improvement Report  
(Only includes cases closed during the reporting period) 

 

Reporting Period:  From:  7/1/2016 To:  6/30/2017 

Program Name - 
Agency Name:  

Lincoln MDFT Program Contra Costa County - Lincoln Child 
Center  

Date of Report:  08/11/2017 

Number of Closed 
Cases:  

49 

 

 
 



Benchmark 30% or more 

---------------------------------- 

1. Marijuana and/or Alcohol Use:  63 

2. Hard Drug Use:  75 

3. Delinquency/Crime:  69 

4. Aggressive and Violent Behavior:  71 

5. School Attendance:  34 

6. Mental Health Functioning:  39 

7. Family Violence:  47 

8. Family functioning:  39 

9. School Grades/Performance:  45 

10. Peer Affiliation:  38 
 
 

Behavioral Outcomes Report  
(Only includes cases closed during the reporting period) 

 

Reporting Period:  From:  7/1/2016 To:  6/30/2017 

Program Name - 
Agency Name:  

Lincoln MDFT Program Contra Costa County - Lincoln Child 
Center  

Date of Report:  08/11/2017 

Number of Closed 
Cases:  

49 

 

 
 

Benchmark 80% or more 

---------------------------------- 

1. Percent of youth living at home/not in placement:  95.92% 

2. Percent of youth in school/working:  77.55% 

3. Percent of youth with no new arrests:  93.88% 

4. Percent of families with no new child abuse/neglect reports:  97.96% 

5. Percent of youth with marijuana/alcohol use less than 10 days per month:  77.55% 

6. Percent of youth with no hard drug use:  85.71% 

7. 
Percent of youth who never or rarely engage in illegal activities other than 
drug/alcohol use, shoplifting, trespassing, loitering, truancy, etc.:  

79.59% 

8. Percent of youth who never or rarely engage in violent behavior:  91.84% 

9. Percent of youth with stable mental health functioning:  79.59% 



10. 
Percent of youth who do not affiliate mostly or exclusively with anti-social 
peers:  

79.59% 

11. Percent of youth not at high risk for STDs and pregnancy:  91.84% 

12. Percent of families who are not characterized by poor family functioning:  81.63% 

13. Percent of families who do not regularly resort to family violence:  95.92% 

14. Percent of youth not on probation:  26.53% 

15. Percent of youth with no open child welfare case:  95.92% 

16. Percent of cases closed successfully:  73.47% 

17. Reason for treatment discharge:  
 

 
a. Percentage met most treatment goals:  53.06% 

b. Percentage maximum gain:  24.49% 

c. Percentage discharged to juvenile justice facility:  4.08% 

d. Percentage moved out of area/unable to locate:  4.08% 

e. Percentage discharged to residential/inpatient treatment care:  2.04% 

f. 
Percentage youth/family dropped out of treatment before goals 
were met:  

12.24% 

g. Percentage unknown:  0% 
 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Implementation is related to Outcomes. In general, research shows that outcomes 
improve as adherence to implementation requirements improve. 
 
Service Delivery & Therapy Sessions: 
 
Case Duration: 
 
Case duration is within the target of 90 – 180 days at 5.32 months per case on average. 
This shows that cases are being retained but also closed within a reasonable time 
frame (not dragging cases out too long). Engagement (cases closed with 8 sessions or 
more completed) was 95%, which is above the 85% target. These figures were based 
on a total of 63 cases seen in the year and 49 closed, which is impressive. 
 
 
Clinical Improvement 
 
The Behavioral Outcomes at discharge were exceptional, with 12 of 15 indicators at or 
above the 80% benchmark and another 2 indicators above the 75% mark. In particular, 



96% of youth were still living in the home at treatment completion (this is outstanding), 
and hence costly out-of-home placement was prevented. Additionally, 94% had no new 
arrests and 92% were never/rarely engaging in violence. Family-level outcomes were 
excellent, with 96% not resorting to violence, 98% having no child neglect or abuse 
reports, 82% exhibiting decent family functioning, and 96% not having an open child 
welfare case at discharge. An impressive 92% of youth were not at high risk for STDs, 
94% had no new arrests, and 86% had no hard drug use at the end of treatment. 
 
The majority of youth and families had stable functioning at discharge according to 
virtually all indicators: having stable mental health functioning (80%), never/rarely 
engaging in major criminal acts (80%), not affiliating mainly with anti-social peers (80%), 
and less than 10 days of marijuana/alcohol use (78%). In addition, 78% were in school 
or working at the end of treatment.  
 
A remarkable 78% of cases met most or all of their treatment goals or maximum gains. 
Only 2% were discharged to residential/inpatient treatment care, and only 4% were 
placed in the juvenile justice system. Only 12% of youth and their families dropped out 
of treatment before treatment goals were met. Wow!  
 
Only one area was below 50%: only 27% were off probation at the end of treatment.   
 
Overall, 74% of cases were reported to have closed successfully. This is exceptional! 
 
Percent Improvement: The average percent improvement on key outcomes from Intake 
to Discharge was outstanding, with ALL of the 10 key areas showing improvement of 
30% or greater. This is unheard of even among other exceptional MDFT programs. The 
greatest improvements were in the most important areas of crime, violence, and 
substance use: there was a 69% improvement in delinquency/crime, 71% improvement 
in aggression/violence, 63% average reduction in marijuana and/or alcohol use, and 
75% reduction in hard drug use. Data also show a 47% decrease in family violence and 
39% improvement in family functioning. School attendance increased by 34% and 
school grades/performance improved by 45%. There was a 38% reduction in negative 
peer affiliation and 39% improvement in mental health functioning. Outstanding!  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
We note exceptional improvements in ALL areas, most notably in terms of crime, 
violence, and substance use. Outstanding outcomes were seen across domains. 
Excellent outcomes were noted across the board, and no declines in any area were 
seen. Wonderful work! 
 
Overall, this is outstanding given the sheer number of cases seen, and the fact that this 
was a challenging year in terms of staff turnover, training, and demands on supervisors. 
We understand the supervisors and trainer were stretched thin, and therapists were 
going above and beyond to meet the needs of their families. We commend the team for 



excellent adherence to implementation parameters and outstanding clinical work and 
outcomes with their cases! 
 
 
 



 

 
 

APPENDIX B 

 

Program Description/Service Work Plan 

Lincoln  
Point of Contact: Christine Stoner-Mertz, CEO 
Contact Information:  1266 14th St, Oakland CA 94607, (510) 273-4700 
chrisstoner@lincolnchildcenter.org  

1. General Description of the Organization 
Lincoln was founded in 1883 as the region's first volunteer-run, non-sectarian, and 
fully integrated orphanage. As times and community needs evolved, Lincoln's 
commitment to vulnerable children remained strong. In 1951, Lincoln began serving 
abused, neglected and emotionally challenged children. Today, as a highly 
respected provider of children's services, Lincoln has a continuum of programs to 
serve challenged children and families throughout the Bay Area. Their community 
based services include early intervention programs in the Oakland and Pittsburg 
School Districts aimed at stopping the cycle of violence, abuse and mental health 
problems for at-risk children and families. 

2. Program: Multi-Dimensional Family Therapy (MDFT) 
 – Full Service Partnership CSS 
Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT), an evidence-based practice, is a 
comprehensive and multi-systemic family-based outpatient program for youth and 
adolescents with co-occurring substance use and mental health disorders who may 
be at high risk for continued substance abuse and other problem behaviors, such as 
conduct disorder and delinquency.  Working with the youth and their families, MDFT 
helps youth develop more effective coping and problem solving skills for better 
decision making, and helps the family improve interpersonal functioning as a 
protective factor against substance abuse and related problems.  Services are 
delivered over 4 to 6 months, with weekly or twice-weekly, face-to-face contact, 
either in the home, the community or in the clinic. 
a. Scope of Services 

• Services include but are not limited to: 
• Outreach and engagement 
• Case management 
• Outpatient Mental Health Services 
• Crisis Intervention 
• Collateral Services 

mailto:chrisstoner@lincolnchildcenter.org


 

 
 

• Group Rehab 
• Flexible funds 
• Contractor must be available to consumer on 24/7 basis 

b. Target Population: Children ages 11 to 19 years in West, Central and East 
County experiencing co-occurring serious mental health and substance abuse 
disorders. Youth and their families can be served by this program. 

c. Payment Limit: $874,417  
d. Number served: The program served 78 clients in FY15/16. 
e. Outcomes:  For FY 15/16:  

• Reduction in incidence of psychiatric crisis 
• Reduction of the incidence of restriction 
 

 
 
Table 5. Pre- and post-enrollment utilization rates for 78 Lincoln Child Center, participants enrolled in 
the FSP program during FY 15-16 
 
   No.  pre- No. post- Rate pre- Rate post- %change 
   enrollment  enrollment enrollment enrollment 
 
PES episodes  19  9  0.032  0.012  -62.5 
 
Inpatient episodes 2  2  0.003  0.004  +33.3 
 
Inpatient days  6  8  0.010  0.004  -60 
 
JACS   25  15  0.037  0.022  -40.5 
 
 

 
  



SERVICE WORK PLAN 

Agency:   Lincoln 
Contract #:   
Fiscal Year:    2016/2017 
Title of Program:   Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT) 
 

 

I. Scope of Services 
 
Lincoln will provide a Children’s Behavioral Health Program funded by EPSDT and 
MHSA, utilizing Multidimensional Family Therapy to 11-19 year olds experiencing 
either co-occurring mental health and substance abuse related disorders or solely 
mental health disorders that qualify youth for a Full Service Partnership MH 
program.  Youth and their families throughout Contra Costa County can be served 
through this program.  The length of treatment in the MDFT model ranges.  On 
average, treatment lasts 4-6 months, plus After-Care services lasting 6-8 weeks in 
which MH services are provided as needed.  Thus, MDFT length of treatment, which 
includes After-Care services per the EBP model, ranges from 5-9 months in total. 
Treatment may be extended past 9 months if the need is determined.  If additional 
services are required after 9 months, additional authorization would be requested.   
 

II. Types of Mental Health Service/Other Service-Related Activities 
 
Lincoln will provide mental health services for 50-100 youth per fiscal year.  Services 
include, but are not limited to: 
 
* Outreach and engagement 
* Case Management 
* Outpatient Mental Health Services 
* Crisis Intervention 
* Flexible Funding 

 

On-Call Policy: Lincoln MDFT staff will provide 24 hour coverage for open cases in the MDFT 
program.  Families will be provided with a dedicated on-call number for the MDFT program and 
encouraged to call that line for all after-hours and weekend emergencies.  Clinicians and 



supervisors will share on-call duties based on a rotating weekly schedule.  Family Advocates will 
not be included in the on-call coverage plan.   

Program Manager will be responsible for creating and maintaining the schedule to 
ensure coverage.  To coordinate care, all clinicians will complete data forms (On-Call Notes) 
about their cases, including all necessary emergency information and relevant case information, 
including current interventions and strategies.  On-Call Notes will be updated monthly to 
provide up to date information.  The on-call staff will have these forms compiled in an on-call 
binder to assist them with any after-hour work.  Emergency calls made to the on-call line will be 
assessed for need and triaged.  Possible on-call responses include phone de-escalation of 
client/family crisis and/or assisting the client/family to call emergency services.   

III. Criteria for Eligibility of Services: 
 
A. Admissions: 

County Mental Health shall determine eligibility criteria to ensure clients meet 
FSP level of need.  All participants eligible to be enrolled will meet the following 
criteria: 
1.  Youth 11-19 years of age and their families 
2. Must meet medical necessity in accordance with Medi-Cal requirements 
3. Must meet MDFT model criteria for appropriateness of fit 
4. Must meet one of the following criteria:  

a. On probation 
b. Referred from the Contra Costa Mental Health Children’s System of Care 
c. CALOCUS 17+ 

 
B. Discharge Criteria: 

Participants will be discharged from services in the following scenarios: (1) The 
youth has completed the course of treatment as determined by the MDFT model 
(2) It is determined that the youth requires a higher level of care to address 
substance use issues (3) The guardians and/or youth refuses to participate in 
services by not being involved in the development of the Partnership Plan and/or 
refusal to attend services, or (4) The guardian requests (either written or verbal 
form) state that they no longer wish to have services for their child, or (5) The 
youth and family moves away from the specified service area.  For those youth 
whose families move away from the specified service area, Contractor will work 
with existing mental health programs and attempts to provide a smooth 
transition for the child/family.   
 



IV. Program Facilities/Hours of Operation/Staffing 
 
A.  Program Facilities Location(s) 

Main site will be located at 51 Marina Boulevard, 1st floor, Pittsburg, CA 94565.  
Services will mainly take place in locations such as participant’s home and in the 
community.  On occasion, clients may be seen at the Pittsburg office for 
assessments, family meetings, and/or other required appointments. 
 

B. Contact Person and Phone Number 
Kelly Collyer, Director Family Therapy, for Lincoln.  (510) 867-1006.   
Renee Lesti, Clinical Program Manager, for Lincoln MDFT.  (510) 421-6866.  
General information can also be obtained by calling Lincoln’s main offices at 
(510) 273-4700. 
 

C. Program Hours of Operation 
Lincoln will provide services between the hours of 8:00a, and 8:00pm Monday 
through Friday, with on-call services available 24/7. 
 

D. Program Staffing (including staffing pattern) 
Lincoln will employ a minimum of 10.25 FTE.  In the MDFT Program Lincoln will 
employ 8 FTE to provide direct service.  Of the direct service positions, there are 
6 MDFT Clinicians and 2 Family Advocates.  1 FTE and 0.6 FTE managers, and 0.5 
clerical support. 
 

V. Service Documentation 
 
Lincoln will provide documentation of services as determined by Medi-Cal and 
MHSA requirements and will collaborate with County personnel to enter PSP data.  
Assessments and treatment plans will be completed within the first 60 days.  A 
Discharge Summary will be completed at discharge.  This information will be entered 
into PSP and charts will be brought to CCCBHS Central County Clinic for Utilization 
Review.  Other components of evaluation and outcomes tracking are to be 
determined in accordance with State and County guidelines. 
 

VI. Billing Procedure 
 
Contractor shall submit to Mental Health each month a Demand for Payment (Form 
D15) for services rendered.  



Demands for payment should be submitted by mail to: 
  Helen Kearns, Project Manager 
  Contra Costa County Children’s Mental Health Division 
  1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 200 
  Martinez, CA 94553 
  (925) 957-5125 
 

VII. Program Outcomes  
A. Seventy percent of youth who complete treatment will have reduced substance 
 use or maintained abstinence. 
B. Seventy percent of youth who complete treatment will have reduced 
 delinquency or maintained positive functioning in this target area. 
C. Sixty percent of youth enrolled will demonstrate improvement in functioning. 
 

VIII. Performance Outcome Measures 
A. CANS to measure functioning in multiple domains during Initial Assessment and 

at discharge. 
B. GAIN-Q3 to measure functioning in the following domains: school, work, stress, 

physical health, HIV risk behaviors, mental health (internalizing and externalizing 
disorders), substance use, crime and violence.  Completed at intake, discharge, 
and 3 months post treatment. 

C. Youth and caregiver surveys to assess satisfaction with services. 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 

 
 

APPENDIX C 

Service Provider Budget 

 

  





 

 
 

APPENDIX D 

Yearly External Fiscal Audit 

 

 

  

































































 

 
 

APPENDIX E 

Organization Chart 
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MDFT CC Employee List

Last Name First Name Department
Caputo Zena 540
Hodge Jocelyn 540
Hoover Collyer Kelly 540
Lesti Renee 540
Rizzo Gianna 540
Rodriguez Janitzia 540
Scott Evangeline 540
Simpson Diatra 540
Ward William 540
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